

Ahsay Online Backup Manager v8 Microsoft Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 (EWS) Mail Level Backup & Restore Guide

Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited

4 November 2021



www.ahsay.com

A wholly owned subsidiary of Ahsay Backup Software Development Company Limited HKEx Stock Code: 8290

Copyright Notice

© 2021 Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited. All rights reserved.

The use and copying of this product is subject to a license agreement. Any other use is prohibited. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system or translated into any language in any form by any means without prior written consent of Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited. Information in this manual is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of the vendor, Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited does not warrant that this document is error free. If you find any errors in this document, please report to Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited in writing.

This product includes software developed by the Apache Software Foundation (https://www.apache.org/).

Trademarks

Ahsay, Ahsay Cloud Backup Suite, Ahsay Online Backup Suite, Ahsay Offsite Backup Server, Ahsay Online Backup Manager, Ahsay A-Click Backup, Ahsay Replication Server, Ahsay BackupBox Firmware, Ahsay Universal Backup System and Ahsay NAS Client Utility, Ahsay Mobile are trademarks of Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited.

Amazon S3 is a registered trademark of Amazon Web Services, Inc., or its affiliates.

Apple and Mac OS X, macOS, and iOS are registered trademarks of Apple Computer, Inc.

Dropbox is a registered trademark of Dropbox Inc.

Google Cloud Storage, Google Drive, Google Authenticator, and Android are registered trademarks of Google Inc.

Wasabi Hot Cloud Storage is a registered trademark of Wasabi Technologies Inc.

Backblaze B2 Cloud Storage is a registered trademark of Backblaze Inc.

MariaDB is a registered trademark of MariaDB Corporation AB.

Lotus, Domino, and Notes are registered trademark of IBM Corporation.

Microsoft Windows, Microsoft Exchange Server, Microsoft SQL Server, Microsoft Hyper-V, Microsoft Azure, OneDrive, OneDrive for Business, Microsoft Authenticator, and Microsoft Office 365 are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Oracle 11g, Oracle 12c, Oracle 18c, Oracle 19c, and MySQL are registered trademarks of Oracle Corporation.

Rackspace and OpenStack are registered trademarks of Rackspace US, Inc.

Red Hat, Red Hat Enterprise Linux, the Shadowman logo and JBoss are registered trademarks of Red Hat, Inc. www.redhat.com in the U.S. and other countries.

Linux is a registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other countries.

Ubuntu is a registered trademark of Canonical Ltd.

ShadowProtect is a registered trademark of StorageCraft Technology Corporation.

VMware ESXi, vCenter, and vSAN are registered trademarks of VMware, Inc.

All other product names are registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Disclaimer

Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited will not have or accept any liability, obligation or responsibility whatsoever for any loss, destruction or damage (including without limitation consequential loss, destruction or damage) however arising from or in respect of any use or misuse of reliance on this document. By reading and following the instructions in this document, you agree to accept unconditionally the terms of this Disclaimer and as they may be revised and/or amended from time to time by Ahsay Systems Corporation Limited without prior notice to you.

Revision History

Date	Descriptions	Type of modification	
25 January 2021	Updated screenshot in Ch. 2.1.5; Updated PDIC diagram in Ch. 3; Updated login steps in Ch. 4	Modification	
7 April 2021	Updated Ch. 3; Added sub-chapters for the detailed process diagrams in Ch. 3.1, 3.2, 3.2.1, 3.2.2 and 3.3	New / Modifications	
11 October 2021	Updated login instructions in Ch. 4	Modifications	
4 November 2021	Added limitation in Ch. 2.3	New	

Table of Contents

1	Overvi	ew		5
	1.1	Introduc	ction	5
	1.2	What is	this software?	5
	1.3	System	Architecture	5
	1.4	ould I use AhsayOBM to back up my Mailboxes and Public Folders	3?7	
	1.5	About T	his Document	13
		1.5.1	Document Main Part	13
		1.5.2	What should I expect from this document?	14
		1.5.3	Who should read this document?	14
2	Prepar	ation for	^r Backup and Restore	15
	2.1	Require	ment	15
		2.1.1	Software Requirement	15
		2.1.2	Antivirus Exclusion Requirement	15
		2.1.3	Upgrade VMware Tools Requirement	15
		2.1.4	AhsayOBM Installation	16
		2.1.5	Microsoft Exchange Mailbox Add-On Module	16
		2.1.6	AhsayOBM Licenses	16
		2.1.7	Backup Quota Requirement	17
		2.1.8	Continuous Backup Module	17
		2.1.9	Java Heap Size	17
		2.1.10	Temporary Directory Folder	17
		2.1.11	Scheduled Backup for Exchange Server in Data Availability Grou (DAG)	•
		2.1.12	Mailbox Role	18
		2.1.13	Operating System	18
		2.1.14	Supported Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Version	18
		2.1.15	Exchange Servers Properties	18
		2.1.16	Windows User Account Permission	19
		2.1.17	Enabling Mailbox	21
		2.1.18	Login Name Format Requirement	22
		2.1.19	Backup Source Requirement	22
		2.1.20	Network Drive Requirements	22
		2.1.21	Port Configuration	23
		2.1.22	Exchange related Windows Services	23
		2.1.23	MS Exchange Databases	23
		2.1.24	Windows PowerShell	24
		2.1.25	.Net Framework	25
		2.1.26	Remote Exchange Management Shell	27
		2.1.27	LAN Manager Authentication Level	27
		2.1.28	IISAuthenticationMethods Setting	28

	2.2	Suppor	ted Source	29
	2.3	Limitati	on	29
	2.4	Best Pr	31	
3	Overvi	ew of M	S Exchange Mail Level Backup Process	
	3.1	Periodi	c Data Integrity Check (PDIC) Process	
	3.2	Backup	Set Index Handling Process	
		3.2.1	Start Backup Job	
		3.2.2	Completed Backup Job	
	3.3	Data Va	alidation Check Process	40
4	Loggir	ng in to <i>l</i>	AhsayOBM	41
	4.1	Login to	o AhsayOBM without 2FA	41
	4.2	Login v	vith 2FA using authenticator app	43
	4.3	Login v	vith 2FA using Twilio	46
5	On Ex	change	Server	
	5.1	Standa	lone Backup Option	48
		5.1.1	Create Mail Level Backup Set	48
		5.1.2	Run Mail Level Backup Job	56
		5.1.3	Restore Mail Level Backup	59
	5.2	Databa	se Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option	66
		5.2.1	Create Mail Level Backup Set	66
		5.2.2	Run Mail Level Backup Job	74
		5.2.3	Restore Mail Level Backup	75
6	On Re	mote Ba	ckup Machine	
	6.1	Standa	Ione Backup Option	82
		6.1.1	Create Mail Level Backup Set	82
		6.1.2	Run Mail Level Backup Job	90
		6.1.3	Restore Mail Level Backup	92
	6.2	Databa	se Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option	
		6.2.1	Create Mail Level Backup Set	
		6.2.2	Run Mail Level Backup Job	107
		6.2.3	Restore Mail Level Backup	110
	6.3	Configu	ure Backup Schedule for Automated Backup	116
7	Contac	ct Ahsay	/	120
	7.1	Technie	cal Assistance	120
	7.2	Docum	entation	

www.ahsay.com

1 Overview

1.1 Introduction

This user guide aims at providing detailed information for backing up and restoring individual mail items and public folder items stored in Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 with AhsayOBM, also known as the Mail Level backup.

Mail Level Backup must be utilized in conjunction with full Information Store Backup as Mail Level backup for Microsoft Exchange Server is not designed to fully protect an Exchange Server, but to facilitate easy backup and fast restoration of individual emails, contacts, calendars or public folder, etc.

AhsayOBM supports standalone backup option and Database Availability Group (DAG) backup option for Exchange server Mail Level backup.

Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup and restore can be performed by installing AhsayOBM either on the Exchange server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 hosting the database or on a remote backup machine.

1.2 What is this software?

Ahsay brings you specialized client backup software, namely AhsayOBM, to provide a set of tools to protect your mailboxes and public folders on Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019. This includes backup and recovery of individual emails, contacts, calendars and other mail items in your mailboxes and public folders, with snapshots / versioning, and retention policy to protect even email that you may have accidentally deleted from your Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2016 / 2016 / 2019 mailboxes or public folders.

1.3 System Architecture

Below is the system architecture diagram illustrating the major elements involved in the backup and restore process among the Microsoft Exchange Server 2013/ 2016 / 2019, AhsayOBM and AhsayCBS.

- 1. AhsayOBM v8.1.0.0 or above installed on Exchange Server 2013/ 2016 / 2019.
 - Standalone: The latest version of AhsayOBM is installed on the Exchange server which is connected to AhsayCBS backup server through LAN or internet.





Database Availability Group (DAG): The latest version of AhsayOBM is installed on all the DAG members on Exchange server which is connected to AhsayCBS backup server through LAN or internet, and all the DAG members share the same backup set.



- 2. AhsayOBM v8.1.0.0 or above installed on Remote Backup Machine.
 - Standalone: The latest version of AhsayOBM is installed on the remote backup machine which is connected to Exchange server and AhsayCBS backup server through LAN or internet.



Database Availability Group (DAG): The latest version of AhsayOBM is installed on the remote backup machine which is connected to DAG members on Exchange server and AhsayCBS backup server though LAN or internet, and all the DAG members share the same backup set.



1.4 Why should I use AhsayOBM to back up my Mailboxes and Public Folders?

We are committed to bringing you a comprehensive Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup solution with AhsayOBM. Below are some key areas that we can help to make your backup experience a better one.



1. Fast and Efficient Restore

We understand that restore could be a time and resources consuming process, which is why AhsayOBM is designed with advanced technologies to make restore a fast and efficient process by restoring individual mail items without the need to restore the whole Exchange server database.

AhsayOBM supports recovery directly to a live production MS Exchange server, so there is no service interruption or downtime incurred, and also the user mailboxes do not have to be disabled and can function normally during the recovery procedure.

2. Backup of Selected Mailboxes & Mailbox Items

The backup resources can be mailbox level, folder level and even item level.

- I Flexible backup options:
 - Only select the required mailboxes, specific folders or items for backup.
- In Flexible restore options:
 - Restore the whole mailbox contents or just one email.
 - Restore mail items to the original mailbox or an alternate mailbox
 - Restore mail items to an alternate mailbox on another email domain

3. Unlimited Versioning

AhsayOBM provides backup and restore option for different version of exchange server to fulfill your requirement.

4. Flexible Scheduling

You may wish to run backup at a specified time interval of your choice, that's why we also allow you to set your own backup schedules so that you can take full control of the time when to perform backup.

Block Level Incremental Backup-this technology breaks down the backup files into multiple blocks and only the changed blocks will be backed up each time

5. High Level of Security with AES 256-bit Encryption

We understand your Exchange mail objects may contain sensitive information that requires to be protected, that is why your backup data will be encrypted with the highest level of security measure.

- Un-hackable Encryption Key to provide the best protection to your backup data, you can turn on the encryption feature which will default encrypt the backup data locally with AES 256-bit truly randomized encryption key.
- Encryption Key Recovery Furthermore, we have a backup plan for you to recover your encryption key in case you have lost it. Your backup service provider can make it mandatory for you to upload the encryption key to the centralized management console, the encryption key will be uploaded in hashed format and will only be used when you request for a recovery.

6. Better Backup Performance & Higher Reliability

Better Performance:

 Multi-thread Backup: The technology utilizes the computing power of multiple CPU cores for creating multiple backup and restore threads to produce fast backup and restore performance.

The default setting for MS Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 mail level backup sets supports:

• Backup of 4 mailboxes concurrently (4 threads).

www.ahsay.com

• For each of the 4 mailboxes, now supports a maximum 4 mail items concurrently (4 threads).



As shown the technology translate into a total of 16 concurrent threads compared with a total 4 concurrent backup threads for Exchange 2007/2010/2013 mail level backup.

 Index File Structure: The index file structure has been re-designed to improve the backup and restore performance.

Each Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 mailbox will have its own individual index file instead of a single index file for all mailboxes within the backup set.



This new design eliminates any potential I/O performance bottlenecks when the index file is updated during each backup job, which can occur when using single index file structure for multi-thread concurrent backup.

Higher Reliability: The implementation of one index file per mailbox can significantly improve the overall resilience of backup and restore from index related issues.



For example, if a single index file is corrupted, it will only affect the corresponding mailbox, while other mailboxes selected for backup are unaffected.

7. Cloud Destination Backup

To offer you with the highest flexibility of backup destination, you can now back up mail objects to a wide range of cloud storage destinations. Utilizing cloud destination

backup gives you an extra layer of protection in the event of a local drive corruption, where you will still be able to retrieve data from the cloud destination.

Below is a list of supported cloud destinations.

2	Aliyun*	Azure	Microsoft Azure
て、大翼云	CTYun*		Microsoft OneDrive
aws	Amazon S3	OneDrive for Business	Microsoft OneDrive for Business
web services	AWS S3 Compatible Cloud Storage	ß	Rackspace
	Wasabi		OpenStack
4	Backblaze		Dropbox
	Google Cloud Storage		FTP
	Google Drive	SFTP	SFTP

* Available on computers with China or Hong Kong local settings

8. Centralized Management Console

Our enriched features on the centralized web console offers you a one-stop location for monitoring and managing your backup and restore. Below is an overview of what you can do with it. For more details regarding the setup and operations of the centralized management console, refer to the <u>AhsayCBS User's Guide</u> for details.

- Oreate / update / delete backup set
- Onfigure user settings
- Configure backup settings
- View and download backup and restore reports
- Monitor backup and restore live activities
- Monitor storage statistic

9. Cost Effective

License is based on per user mailbox, so you only need to pay for the mailboxes that you wish to backup.

10. Flexible Deployment Options

AhsayOBM supports Mail Level backup and restore of Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 by installing the client agent either on the Exchange server hosting the database, or on a remote backup machine.

Below is a comparison table on the differences on backup and restore with AhsayOBM installation on an Exchange server and on a remote backup machine.

	On Server Backup	Remote Backup
Backup	 Backup jobs will utilize the Exchange server's resources, so it may impact the server performance. If the load on Exchange server is already high, this can impact the backup performance. There is minimal performance issue with the transfer of mail items from the Exchange mail store to AhsayOBM. 	 Backup jobs will utilize the remote backup machine's resources, therefore, there is minimal impact on the Exchange server performance. Backup performance can be affected by the network connection speed between the Exchange server and the remote backup machine, especially for connection over the Internet. General backup performance can be
		easily resolved by installing AhsayOBM on a more powerful backup machine.
Large Number of Mailboxes	 Backup of a large number of mailboxes can take more time to complete. For example, it may not be 	 Backup of a large number of mailboxes can take less time to complete. For example, 1000 user
	possible to run multiple mail level backup sets concurrently on the Exchange server for 1000 user mailboxes, as it may affect the server performance, so administrator may be limited to start one backup set at a time.	 mailboxes can be divided into 5 separate backup sets of 200 mailboxes each. The 5 backup sets can be started concurrently on 1 machine or started by multiple machines. 5 backup sets * 16 concurrent threads = 80 concurrent threads
	1 backup set can only have a total of 16 concurrent threads by default.	

Backup Scheduling	For environment backup window, not be sufficient complete both d mail level backu daily basis.	there may time to atabase and	backup window, remote backup may be a good option as the mail level backup can be completed remotely, while the database backup can be completed on the Exchange server at the same time period.
Costs	 For Exchange D the number of A licenses required the number of D members (nodes example, if there members then 3 licenses are req If the Exchange already setup fo backups, then th additional licens Do not require p additional Windo machine. 	hsayOBM d is equal to AG s). For e are 3 DAG c AhsayOBM uired. server is r database here is no e cost. rovision of	Only requires 1 AhsayOBM license as remote backup of Exchange DAG only requires AhsayOBM to be installed on 1 machine.
Restore	The restore of m to another (stand Exchange serve installation of Af the new MS Exc server.	dby) MS r, requires nsayOBM on	without direct / physical access to the MS Exchange server.

1.5 About This Document

1.5.1 Document Main Part

The document can be divided into 3 main parts.

Part 1: Preparation for Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level Backup & Restore

Requirements Requirements on AhsayOBM, Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 and Windows Operating System

Supported Backup Source & Limitation Supported backup source of Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 and limitation

Best Practice and Recommendation Items recommended to pay attention to before backup and restore

Part 2: Perform Mail Level Backup and Restore for Microsoft Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 on Exchange Server

Standalone Backup Option

Create Mail Level backup set, run Mail Level backup job and restore Mail Level backup

Database Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option

Create Mail Level backup set, run Mail Level backup job and restore Mail Level backup

Part 3: Perform Mail Level Backup and Restore for Microsoft Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 on Remote Backup Machine

Standalone Backup Option

Create Mail Level backup set, run Mail Level backup job and restore Mail Level backup

Database Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option

Create Mail Level backup set, run Mail Level backup job and restore Mail Level backup

1.5.2 What should I expect from this document?

After reading through this documentation, you can expect to have sufficient knowledge to set up your system to make Mail Level backup of Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 on AhsayOBM, as well as to carry out an end-to-end backup and restore process.

1.5.3 Who should read this document?

This documentation is intended for backup administrators and IT professionals who are responsible for the Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup and restore.

2 Preparation for Backup and Restore

2.1 Requirement

You are strongly recommended to configure or check all the settings below to confirm all the requirements are met before you proceed with the Exchange Mail Level backup and restoration.

2.1.1 Software Requirement

Refer to the following article for the list of compatible operating systems and application versions.

FAQ: Ahsay Software Compatibility List (SCL) for version 8.1 or above

2.1.2 Antivirus Exclusion Requirement

To optimize performance of AhsayOBM on Windows, and to avoid conflict with your antivirus software, refer to the following article the list of processes and directory paths that should be added to all antivirus software white-list / exclusion list: https://wiki.ahsay.com/doku.php?id=public:8014_faq:suggestion_on_antivirus_exclusions

NOTE

The bJW.exe process is automatically added to Windows Defender exclusion list for Windows 10 and 2016 during installation / upgrade via installer or upgrade via AUA.

2.1.3 Upgrade VMware Tools Requirement

To avoid unexpected java crash, if the Windows machine is a guest VM hosted on a VMware Host then it is highly recommended that the VMware tools version installed on the guest VM must be 10.0.5 or above.

Below is the warning message that will be displayed if the version of the VMware Tools is less than 10.0.5.



For more information about the upgrade of VMware Tools, refer to this article <u>https://wiki.ahsay.com/doku.php?id=public:5288_ahsayobc_crash_on_vm_with_vmware_tools_pre-</u> 10.0.5.



2.1.4 AhsayOBM Installation

AhsayOBM v8.1.0.0 or above must be installed either on the Exchange Server 2016 / 2019 hosting the database or on the remote backup machine.

AhsayOBM v8.3.0.96 or above must be installed either on the Exchange Server 2013 hosting the database or on the remote backup machine.

2.1.5 Microsoft Exchange Mailbox Add-On Module

One Microsoft Exchange Mailbox license is required for the backup of each user mailbox. No license is required for public folder.

Make sure the Microsoft Exchange Mailbox feature has been enabled as an add-on module in your AhsayOBM user account and there is sufficient Microsoft Exchange Mailbox license quota to cover the backup of your mailboxes.

User Profile	General Backup Client Settings	Contact User Group Authentication Mobile Backup
Backup Set	Settings of the client backup agent for this	s user.
Settings		
Report	Backup Client	
Statistics	AhsayOBM User AhsayACB Us	er
Effective Policy	Add-on Modules Image: Microsoft Exchange Server Image: MySQL Database Server Image: Lotus Domino Image: Lotus Domino	NAS - Synology Continuous Data Protection In-File Delta

Please contact your backup service provider for more details.

2.1.6 AhsayOBM Licenses

AhsayOBM licenses are calculated on a per device basis.

- 1. For backup of mailboxes on a standalone Microsoft Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Server, one AhsayOBM license is required.
- For backup of mailboxes on a Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 DAG setup, the number of AhsayOBM licenses required is equal to the number of DAG members in the DAG. For example, if there are three DAG members then three AhsayOBM licenses are required.

Please contact your backup service provider for more details



2.1.7 Backup Quota Requirement

Make sure that your AhsayOBM user account has sufficient storage quota assigned to accommodate the storage of additional Exchange mailbox and public folder items for the new mail level backup set and retention policy.

Please contact your backup service provider for more details.

2.1.8 Continuous Backup Module

The Continuous backup add-on module is required if you would like to enable the continuous backup feature.

2.1.9 Java Heap Size

The default Java heap size setting on AhsayOBM is 2048MB. For Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 mail level backup, it is highly recommended to increase the Java heap size setting to be at least 4096MB to improve backup and restore performance. The actual heap size is dependent on amount of free memory available on your Exchange 2016 / 2019 server.

2.1.10 Temporary Directory Folder

Temporary Directory folder is used by AhsayOBM for storing backup set index files and any incremental or differential delta files generated during a backup job. To ensure optimal backup/restoration performance, it is recommended that the temporary directory folder is located on a local drive with sufficient free disk space.

2.1.11 Scheduled Backup for Exchange Server in Data Availability Group (DAG)

Scheduled backup is required if you choose to back up in DAG option on Exchange server as AhsayOBM on all DAG members will base on the scheduled backup time to start backup on all the individual DAG member at the same time.

- 1. A DAG backup cycle is considered complete only when scheduled backup on all DAG members have been carried out. An email report will be generated when a complete DAG backup cycle has taken place.
- 2. Please keep in mind that manual backup will only be considered as individual Mail Level backup, and therefore will not be counted as part of the DAG backup cycle.

However, for backup and restore on a remote backup machine, as the operation for single node can be done either manually or automatically, a scheduled backup is not required.

2.1.12 Mailbox Role

Ensure all nodes have mailbox role. This can be checked by accessing the Exchange admin center (EAC).

Exchange admin center					
recipients	servers databases	s database availability groups	virtual directories	certificates	
permissions					
compliance management	/				
organization	NAME 🔺	SERVER ROLES	VERSION		
protection	W2K16-XCH2K16	Mailbox	Version 15.1 (Build 669	W2K16-XCH2K16	
mail flow				Mailbox Version 15.1 (Build 669.32) Enterprise	
mobile				Licensed	
public folders					
unified messaging					
servers					
hybrid					
tools					
		1 selected of 1 total			

2.1.13 Operating System

- 1. For AhsayOBM installed on the Exchange Server 2013/2016/2019, the operating system must be Windows Server 2012/ 2012 R2/ 2016 / 2019 or above.
- For AhsayOBM installed on the remote backup machine, the operating system must be Windows 7/ 8/ 8.1/ 10 or Windows Server 2008/ 2008 R2/ 2012/ 2012 R2/ 2016 / 2019 or above.

2.1.14 Supported Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Version

- MS Exchange Server 2013 Cumulative Update 3 (CU3) or later is supported.
- MS Exchange Server 2016 Cumulative Update 4 (CU4) or later is supported.
- MS Exchange Server 2019 Cumulative Update 1 (CU1) or later is supported

2.1.15 Exchange Servers Properties

To check the properties of Exchange Servers, use the Get-ExchangeServer cmdlet found in the Exchange Management Shell.

Example: Get-ExchangeServer | Format-List Name, Edition,AdminDisplayVersion

Please refer to the following Microsoft article for details of MS Exchange build numbers and releases: <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/exchange/new-features/build-numbers-and-release-dates?view=exchserver-2019</u>

2.1.16 Windows User Account Permission

The Windows user account used for the backup must be a member of the following security groups.

Exchange Server 2013/2016/2019

• Discovery Management (including ApplicationImpersonation and Mailbox Search)

	🥔 Role Group - Internet Explorer 📃 🗖 👗
/?ExchClientVer=15	Discovery Management
	*Name:
	Discovery Management
nter	
	Description:
admin roles user roles Outl	Members of this management role group can perform searches of mailboxes in the Exchange organization for data that meets specific criteria.
+ 🖍 🖻 🖻 🔎 😅	Write scope:
NAME	Default
Compliance Management Delegated Setup	Organizational unit:
Discovery Management Help Desk	Roles:
Hygiene Management	+-
	NAME
Public Folder Management	ApplicationImpersonation
Recipient Management	Mailbox Search
Records Management	Malloox Search
-	
-	
View-Only Organization Management	Members:
	+ -
	T -
	NAME DISPLAY NAME
	Administrator Administrator
	Backup Backup
	Save Cancel
1 selected of	
	€ 100% -
	nter admin roles user roles Outl + * * • • • • • • > > NAME Compliance Management Delegated Setup Discovery Management Help Desk Hygiene Management Rocipient Management Rocipient Management Recipient Management Server Management Server Management UM Management View-Only Organization Management

Organization Management

		🖉 Role Group - Internet Explorer 📃 🗖	x
← → 🔩 https://localhost/ecp	/?ExchClientVer=15 ♀ ▼ 😵 Cettificate error C	Organization Management	
Enterprise Office 365		*Name:	
Exchange admin ce	nter	Organization Management Description:	Í
recipients	admin roles user roles Outlook V	Members of this management role group have permissions to manage Exchange objects and their properties in the Exchange organization. Members can also delegate role	
permissions		groups and management roles in the organization. This role group shouldn't be deleted.	
compliance management	+ 🖍 亩 🖻 P 🕄	Write scope:	
organization	NAME	Default	I
protection	Compliance Management Delegated Setup	Organizational unit:	
mail flow	Discovery Management Help Desk	Roles	
mobile	Hygiene Management Organization Management	+ -	
public folders	Public Folder Management Recipient Management	Active Directory Permissions	
unified messaging	Records Management	Address Lists Audit Logs	
servers	Server Management UM Management	Cmdlet Extension Agents	
hybrid	View-Only Organization Management	Members:	
tools		+ -	l
		NAME DISPLAY NAME A	
		Administrator Administrator Backup Backup	
		Save Cancel	
	1 selected of 12 total	Jave Califer	
		€ <u>100%</u> •	•

Public Folder Management

		6	Role Group - Internet Explorer	_ _ ×
	?ExchClientVer=15 ♀ ▼ 😵 Certificate error 🖒 🔤	Public Folder Manaç	gement	
Enterprise Office 365		*Name:		
Exchange admin cer	nter	Public Folder Management	×	
recipients permissions	admin roles user roles Outlook	Description: Members of this managemen folders. Members can create <i>i</i> manage public folder settings limits, and permissions as wel	such as replicas, quotas, age	
compliance management	+ 🖋 亩 🖻 🔎 😅	disable public folders. Write scope:		
organization	NAME	Default	~	
protection	Compliance Management Delegated Setup	Organizational unit:		
mail flow	Discovery Management Help Desk	Roles:		
mobile	Hygiene Management Organization Management	NAME		
public folders	Public Folder Management Recipient Management	Mail Enabled Public Folder	5	
unified messaging	Records Management	Public Folders		
servers	Server Management UM Management			
hybrid	View-Only Organization Management	Members:		
tools		+ -		
		NAME	DISPLAY NAME	
		Administrator Backup	Administrator Backup	~
			Save	Cancel
	1 selected of 12 tot			
				🔍 100% 📼

Login to the Exchange admin center, under **permissions**, **admin roles**. Assign the user to be running the backup as member of the following **admin roles**:

- Discovery Management (including the following **Roles**):
 - o ApplicationImpersonation
 - o Mailbox Search
- Organization Management
- Public Folder Management

Exchange Server 2013

- Microsoft Exchange Security \ Organization Management
- Users \ Administrator
- Users \ Domain Admins
- Users \ Enterprise Admins

	Admi	nistrator Properties	? X	_ 🗆 X
File Action View Help Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users and Image: Active Directory Users Image: Active Directory Users Image: Active Directory Users Image: Active Directory Users Image: Active Directory Users Image: Active Directory Users	General Address Accc Member Of Dial- Member Of Dial- Member of: Name Administrators Domain Admins Domain Admins Exchange Servers Group Policy Creator Owner Organization Management Schema Admins ✓ Add Remove Primary group: Domain U Set Primary Group Thr	n Environment Active Directory Domain Servi qa31.ahsay.com/Bultin qa31.ahsay.com/Users qa31.ahsay.com/Users qa31.ahsay.com/Users qa31.ahsay.com/Users qa31.ahsay.com/Users qa31.ahsay.com/Ucrosoft Ex qa31.ahsay.com/Users III	change Secu change Secu >	Description ^ Built-in account for ad Members in this group c Members of this group t. Members of this group t. Members of this group t. Members of this group c DNS Administrators Gro DNS clients who are per Designated administrato All workstations and ser All domain controllers i All domain users Designated administrato Densignated administrato Members of this group . Members of this group . Members of this group .
<	ОК	Cancel Apply	Help	>

Steps to check the current settings

- 1. Click Start > Control Panel > Administrative Tools, and then click Active Directory Users and Computers.
- 2. Browse to the organization unit containing the corresponding operating system account.
- 3. Right click on the user and select **Properties**.

Select the Member Of tab to check on the membership setting.

2.1.17 Enabling Mailbox

The Windows user account must have an Exchange Server mailbox. Refer to the URL below for more information.

Exchange Server 2013/2016/2019

Enterprise Office 365					Administrator - ?	, .
Exchange admin cer	nter					
recipients	mailboxes	groups resc	ources contacts shared n	nigratior	I	
permissions						
compliance management	+- 🖋 🖮 🔎	g				
organization	DISPLAY NAME	MAILBOX T	EMAIL ADDRESS	DAT		
organization	Administrator	User	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com	Mail	Backup	
protection	Backup	User	backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com	MBX	васкар	
	user01	User	user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com	Mail	User mailbox	
mail flow	user02	User	user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com	Mail	backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com	1
mobile	user03	User	user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com	MBX	Title:	
liobile					Office:	
oublic folders					Work phone:	
unified messaging					Phone and Voice	
annied messaging					Features	
servers					Unified Messaging: Disabled	
					Enable	
hybrid					Mobile Devices	
					Disable Exchange ActiveSy	
cools						

Refer to the following article from Microsoft for more details on how to check if an account is mailbox enabled and how to enable it:

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/Exchange/recipients/create-usermailboxes?view=exchserver-2019

Exchange Server 2013

Refer to the following article from Microsoft for more details on how to check if an account is mailbox enabled. https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/exchange/create-user-mailboxes-exchange-2013-help

Grant Mailbox Access Permission (Full Access)

Enter the following command in the Exchange Management Shell

Get-Mailbox | Add-MailboxPermission –User "%os_username%" –AccessRights FullAccess

Example: granting permission to "administrator" account

Get-Mailbox | Add-MailboxPermission –User "administrator" –AccessRights FullAccess

2.1.18 Login Name Format Requirement

Make sure the Username for connecting the Exchange Server is entered in the format of "user@hostname" (e.g. <u>admin@ahsay.local</u>). It is the same one you can find under the mailbox setting of the Exchange user account on Exchange Admin Center.

2.1.19 Backup Source Requirement

Ensure that the "**Hide from address lists**" option is unchecked for all mailboxes to be selected for backup. Mailbox hidden from the address list will not be shown in the backup source selection menu.

Backup	
 general mailbox usage contact information organization email address mailbox features member of MailTip mailbox delegation 	First name: Backup Initials: Last name: Last name: Backup *Display name: Backup *Jisplay name: Backup *Jisa: backup *Juser logon name: backup © XCH16DAG.ahsay.con ✓ Require password change on next logon Hide from address lists More options
	Save Cancel

2.1.20 Network Drive Requirements

The login accounts for network drives must have read and write access permission to ensure that backup and restore would be successful.



2.1.21 Port Configuration

As Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 mail level backup and restore is implemented using Microsoft EWS API (Exchange Web Services), which enables AhsayOBM to access mailbox items such as email message, meetings, notes, calendar, contact, etc., without any additional installation or complicated setup required on the Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Server or remote backup machine, only **port 443** must be configured to allow communication between AhsayOBM and Exchange server.

2.1.22 Exchange related Windows Services

Ensure all MS Exchange related services have been started, particularly the **MS Exchange Information Store.**

To verify this setting, launch the **Services** menu by clicking **Start** then typing "Services" in the search box. All Exchange related services should be started by default, in case it is not, turn it on by right clicking the item and then select **Start**.

9		Services		_ 🗆 X
File Action View	Help			
* * = =	3 🛃 🚺 📷 🕨 🖩 II 🕪			
🔐 Services (Local)	Services (Local)			
-	Microsoft Exchange Information	Name	*	Desc ^
	Store	G Microsoft Excl	hange IMAP4	Prov
Stop the service Restart the service		A Microsoft Excl	nange IMAP4 Backend	Prov
		🔐 Microsoft Excl	Man	
	Restart the service	Microsoft Excl	Mon	
	G Microsoft Excl	Enab		
	Description:	A Microsoft Excl	Perfc	
	Manages the Microsoft Exchange Information Store, This includes	Alicrosoft Excl	Proc	
	mailbox databases and public folder	A Microsoft Excl	This 🗏	
	databases. If this service is stopped,	A Microsoft Excl	nange Mailbox Transport Submission	This
	mailbox databases and public folder	A Microsoft Excl	nange Migration Workflow	Proc
	databases on this computer are unavailable. If this service is disabled.	A Microsoft Excl	nange POP3	Prov
	any services that explicitly depends	Microsoft Exchange POP3 Backend		Prov
	on it will fail to start.	C Microsoft Excl	hange Replication	The I
		A Microsoft Excl	hange RPC Client Access	Man 🗸
		<	in .	>
	Extended Standard			

2.1.23 MS Exchange Databases

Ensure the MS Exchange Mailbox and Public Folder databases are mounted. This can be verified by Exchange Management Shell or Exchange Admin Center (EAC).

Type the following command in the Exchange Management Shell.

2	Machine	e: XCH2016Mbx01.X	CH16DAG.ahsay.o	com 🔄 🗖 🗙
PS1 C:\Wind	ows∖system32>Get-	-MailboxDatabase		
ame		Server	Recovery	ReplicationType

Exchange Admin Center (EAC)



Exchange admin cer	Exchange admin center					
recipients	servers data	bases databa	se availability gr	oups virtu	al dir	ectories certificates
permissions						
compliance management	+ 🖍 🖮 ភ្ន	÷				
organization	NAME	ACTIVE ON SERV	SERVERS WITH CO	STATUS	в	
protection	Mailbox Databas	XCH2016MBX01 XCH2016MBX01	XCH2016MBX01, XCH2016MBX01,	Mounted Mounted	1	Mailbox Database 1805022754
mail flow	MBX02	XCH2016MBX01	XCH2016MBX01,	Mounted	1	Database availability group:
	Mailbox Databas	XCH2016MBX02	XCH2016MBX02,	Dismounted	1	DAG01
mobile						Servers
public folders						XCH2016MBX01 XCH2016MBX02
unified messaging						Database copies
servers						Mailbox Database 1805022754\XCH2016MBX01 Active Mounted
hybrid						Copy queue length: 0 Content index state: Healthy
						View details
tools						Mailbox Database 1805022754\XCH2016MBX02

2.1.24 Windows PowerShell

Windows PowerShell 5.1 Engine for Exchange Server 2016/2019

Ensure that Windows PowerShell 5.1 Engine is installed.

To install the feature:

- 1. Navigate to Server Manager > Manage, then select Add Roles and Features.
- 2. On the **Select installation type** screen, select **Role-based or feature-based** installation.
- 3. Select the target server.
- 4. On the Select **features** screen, go to the **Features** option, check the box next to **Windows PowerShell 5.1 Engine**.



Windows PowerShell 2.0 Engine for Exchange Server 2013

Make sure the Windows PowerShell 2.0 Engine is installed.

To install the feature:

- 1. Navigate to Server Manager > Manage, then select Add Roles and Features.
- 2. On the **Select installation type** screen, select **Role-based or feature-based** installation.
- 3. Select the target server.
- 4. On the **Select features** screen, go to the **Features** option, check the box next to **Windows PowerShell 2.0 Engine**.

14	Add Roles and Features Wizard	_ D X
Select features Before You Begin Installation Type Server Selection Server Roles Features Confirmation Results	Select one or more features to install on the selected server. Features Image: Select one or more features Image: Sele	Description Windows PowerShell 2.0 Engine includes the core components from Windows PowerShell 2.0 for backward compatibility with existing Windows PowerShell host applications.
	Windows Search Service Windows Server Backup Windows Server Migration Tools Windows Standards-Based Storage Management Windows TIFF IFilter <	> [nstall Cancel

2.1.25 .Net Framework

.Net Framework 4.6.2 Features for Exchange Server 2016/2019

Ensure **.Net Framework 4.6.2 Features** is installed. Please refer to the following URL for detailed information: <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/Exchange/plan-and-deploy/system-requirements?view=exchserver-2016</u>



This feature can be enabled by accessing **Server Manager > Dashboard > Manage > Add Roles and Features Wizard > Feature Page**.

Select features		DESTINATION SERVER w12x-7-23.qa25.ahsay.com
Before You Begin Installation Type Server Selection Server Roles Features Confirmation Results	Select one or more features to install on the selected server. Features Image: Im	Description .NET Framework 3.5 combines the power of the .NET Framework 2.0 APIs with new technologies for building applications that offer appealing user interfaces, protect your customers' personal identity information, enable seamless and secure communication, and provide the ability to model a range of business processes.
	Internet Printing Client IP Address Management (IPAM) Server K III	

.Net Framework 4.6.2 Features for Exchange Server 2013

If you are using Exchange server 2013 on Windows server 2012, please install **.Net Framework 3.5 Features**.

This feature can be enabled by accessing **Server Manager** > **Dashboard** > **Add Roles and Features Wizard** > **Feature Page**.

h	Add Roles and Features Wizard	_ D X
Before You Begin Installation Type Server Selection Server Roles Features Confirmation Results	Select one or more features to install on the selected server. Features MET Framework 3.5 Features (Installed) MET Framework 4.5 Features (Installed) Background Intelligent Transfer Service (BITS) BitLocker Drive Encryption BitLocker Network Unlock BranchCache Client for NFS Data Center Bridging Enhanced Storage Failover Clustering (Installed) Group Policy Management Ink and Handwriting Services (Installed) Internet Printing Client IP Address Management (IPAM) Server 	DESTINATION SERVER w12x-7-23.qa25.ahsay.com Description .NET Framework 3.5 combines the power of the .NET Framework 2.0 APIs with new technologies for building applications that offer appealing user interfaces, protect your customers' personal identity information, enable seamless and secure communication, and provide the ability to model a range of business processes.
	< III >	
	< Previous Next >	Install Cancel

2.1.26 Remote Exchange Management Shell

For setup on MS Exchange Server 2013, the Remote Exchange Management Shell must be enabled for the operating system account used for the backup.

Enter the following command in Exchange Management Shell to enable this feature. >Set-User "%os username%" -RemotePowerShellEnabled \$True

Reboot the Exchange Server after executing the command.

NOTE Remote Shell in Microsoft Exchange Server enables you to manage your server running Exchange.

2.1.27 LAN Manager Authentication Level

Exchange Server 2013

The LAN Manager Authentication level configured on the Exchange Server must be level 3 or above. Follow the steps below to check the settings.

1. Click Start > Control Panel > Administrative Tools, and then click Local Security Policy.

🖄 l ⊋ 🔢 🖛 l			Shortcut Tools	Administrativ	e Tools		D X
File Home S	hare	View	Manage				~ (
🕞 🕘 – 🏠 🗟	► C	ontrol Panel	All Control Pan	el Items 🕨 Administrative Tools	~ C	Search Admin	istr ,P
☆ Favorites	^	Name		•	Date modified	Туре	
Desktop		뒭 Intern	et Information Ser	vices (IIS) 6.0 Manager	8/22/2013 2:50 PM	Shortcut	
Downloads		🗎 Intern	et Information Ser	vices (IIS) Manager	8/22/2013 2:50 PM	Shortcut	
Recent places		🔝 iSCSI I	nitiator		8/22/2013 2:57 PM	Shortcut	
necent proces	=	🛃 Local	Security Policy		8/22/2013 2:54 PM	Shortcut	
💻 This PC		DDBC	Data Sources (32-	bit)	8/22/2013 7:56 AM	Shortcut	
Pesktop		DDBC	Data Sources (64-	bit)	8/22/2013 2:59 PM	Shortcut	
Documents		Perfor	mance Monitor		8/22/2013 2:52 PM	Shortcut	
Downloads		Resou	rce Monitor		8/22/2013 2:52 PM	Shortcut	
Music		👼 Securi	ty Configuration V	Vizard	8/22/2013 2:45 PM	Shortcut	
E Pictures		🛼 Server	Manager		8/22/2013 2:55 PM	Shortcut	
Videos		👸 Servic	es		8/22/2013 2:54 PM	Shortcut	
Local Disk (C:)	¥	<	6 6 C	ш	0/00/0010 0 50 014		>
36 items 1 item sele	cted	1.09 KB					8== 6

- 2. Under Security Settings, expand Local Policies > Security Options, then click Network security: LAN Manager authentication level.
- 3. Make sure that the setting is configured to use NTLMv2, for example:
 - Send NTLMv2 response only
 - Send NTLMv2 response only. Refuse LM
 - Send NTLMv2 response only. Refuse LM & NTLM



2.1.28 IISAuthenticationMethods Setting

Verify if the IISAuthenticationMethods is set to **Basic** only. If so, change the setting with the commands below.

Exchange Server 2013

- 1. Click Start > Microsoft Exchange Server > Exchange Management Shell.
- 2. Enter the following command to check on the IISAuthenticationMethods setting:

>Get-OutlookAnywhere

3. If it is set to {Basic} only, enter the following command to modify the setting:

```
>Set-OutlookAnywhere -Identity:"%Server%\Rpc (Default
Web Site)" -IISAuthenticationMethods
Basic,NTLM,Negotiate
```

4. Reboot the Exchange server.

2.2 Supported Source

Below is the supported mailbox type of Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup.

Mailbox Level					
Item	Supported?	ltem	Supported?		
User mailbox	√	Room Mailbox	✓		
Public Folder	√	Equipment Mailbox	✓		
Public Folder Mailbox	√	Shared Mailbox	✓		

Below are the items that you can back up or restore from an Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup set.

Folder Level					
ltem	Supported?	ltem	Supported?		
Inbox	\checkmark	RSS Feeds	\checkmark		
Drafts	\checkmark	Junk Email	✓		
Sent Items	\checkmark	Tasks	✓		
Deleted Items	√	Calendar	✓		
Archive	√	Contacts	✓		
Notes	√				

2.3 Limitation

For backup and restoration of Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup set, here are some limitations:

1. If you are trying to restore item(s) from one mailbox to an alternate location mailbox, AhsayOBM will restore the item(s) to their respective destination folder(s) with the same name of the original folder(s).

Example: Item from "Inbox" folder of Mailbox-A will be restored to the "Inbox" folder of the alternate location Mailbox-B; Item from "Drafts" folder of Mailbox-A will be restored to the "Drafts" folder of the alternate location Mailbox-B.

2. If you are trying to restore item(s) from several mailboxes to an alternate location mailbox, AhsayOBM will restore the item(s) to their respective destination folder(s)



in alternate location mailbox with the same name of the original folder(s).

Example: Item from "Inbox" folder of Mailbox-A and Mailbox-B will be restored to the "Inbox" folder of the alternate location Mailbox-C.

- 3. Restore of mailbox items or public folder items is only supported if the according mailbox or public folder exists.
- 4. The restore process cannot create a mail item under the user's Exchange root folder, it can only restore to the supported folders listed in <u>Chapter 2.2</u>.
- 5. Only Alternate Location is supported for restoring mailbox items to another domain.
- Restore of mailbox item(s) in public folder to an alternate location mailbox is not supported.

Example: Restore of mailbox item(s) in public folder from Mailbox-A to alternate location Mailbox-B is not supported.

7. If you are trying to restore the mailbox item to a destination mailbox which has a different language setting than the original mailbox, AhsayOBM will restore mailbox item(s) to their respective destination folder based on the translation listed below.

For folders such as 'Calendar' or 'Notes', a new folder 'Calendar' or 'Notes' will be created.

Backup source (English)	Action	Destination mailbox with Chinese as default language settings
Inbox	Merge	收件箱
Outbox	Merge	寄件匣
Sent Items	Merge	寄件備份
Deleted Items	Merge	刪除的郵件
Drafts	Merge	草稿
Junk E-Mail	Merge	垃圾電郵
Calendar	Create new folder	Calendar
Notes	Create new folder	Notes

2.4 Best Practices and Recommendations

The following are some best practices or recommendations we strongly recommend you follow before you start any Exchange Server 2013 / 2016 / 2019 Mail Level backup and restore.

- Mail Level Backup must be utilized in conjunction with Database Level Backup to fully protect an Exchange Server.
- Active Directory server should be protected by regular full Window System Backup at least once every two weeks.
- For AhsayOBM installed on Exchange Server, enable scheduled backup jobs when system activity is low to achieve the best possible performance.
- The remote backup machine should be on the same LAN as the MS Exchange server for optimal backup and restore performance.
- It is highly recommended to set the temporary directory folder to another location with sufficient free disk space other than Drive C: (e.g. Drive E:).
- To provide maximum data protection and flexible restore options, it is recommended to configure:
 - At least one offsite or cloud destination
 - At least one local destination for fast recovery
- Perform test restores periodically to ensure your backup is set up and performed properly. Performing recovery test can also help identify potential issues or gaps in your recovery plan. It's important that you do not try to make the test easier, as the objective of a successful test is not to demonstrate that everything is flawless. There might be flaws identified in the plan throughout the test and it is important to identify those flaws.
- Distributed Backup Solution: For backup of multiple or mass backup sets, to achieve better backup performance and to minimize any unnecessary loading on the Exchange server, please consider deploying AhsayOBM on remote backup machines as distributed backup solution instead of on the MS Exchange server.
- Handling Large Number of Mailboxes: There are two options in backing up large number of mailboxes:
 - Dividing the mailboxes into multiple smaller backup sets
 - Increasing the number of backup threads available

Dividing the mailboxes into multiple smaller backup sets

By default, the MS Exchange 2013 / 2016 / 2019 mail level backup module can back up a maximum of 4 mailboxes concurrently (4 concurrent backup threads), while backing up a maximum of 4 mail items concurrently per mailbox (4 concurrent backup threads). Therefore, each backup set supports a maximum of 4x4=16 backup threads at a time. By splitting up all mailboxes into separate backup sets, the more backup sets, the faster the backup process can achieve.

Example-1: There are 100 mailboxes that need to be backup, you can divide 20 mailboxes into one backup set.

Backup Set Name	Mailbox Number
Backup-Set-1	No.1 20
Backup-Set-2	No.21 40
Backup-Set-3	No.41 60
Backup-Set-4	No.61 80
Backup-Set-5	No.81 100

Note: If there are new mailboxes added, you can create new backup set for the new mailboxes.

Example-2: There are 100 mailboxes that needs to be backup, you can divide mailboxes into backup sets in alphabetical order.

Backup Set Name	Mailbox Name Start with
Backup-Set-1	A E
Backup-Set-2	F J
Backup-Set-3	КО
Backup-Set-4	P T
Backup-Set-5	U Z

Note: If there are new mailboxes added, you can add the new mailboxes into the original backup set by the corresponding alphabetical order.

Increasing the number of backup threads available

Apart from splitting up one large Exchange Mail Level backup set into multiple smaller backup sets, another approach is to increase the number of threads available for the backup job.

The number of backup threads is 4 by default. The number of backup threads can be increased (or reduced) by adding the following setting in the AhsayOBM **afc.opt** file located in C:\Program Files\AhsayOBM\afc.opt:

In this example, the number of threads will be increased from 4 to 8.

core.action.BackupExchangeMailCmd.maxConcurrentSubCmd=8

To configure the number of threads, follow the instructions below:

- 1. Make sure there are no active backup/restore job running.
- 2. Close the AhsayOBM GUI application.
- 3. Stop the Ahsay Online Backup Manager services.
- 4. Go to C:\Program Files\AhsayOBM folder and look for the **afc.opt** file.
- 5. Open the **afc.opt** file using a text editor such as Notepad or Notepad++.
- 6. Add the following setting and save the **afc.opt** file.

core.action.BackupExchangeMailCmd.maxConcurrentSubCmd=8

7. Start the Ahsay Online Backup Manager services.

If you choose to use this option, it is strongly recommended that it will used with AhsayOBM deployed on a remote backup machine running on the same LAN as the MS Exchange 2013/2016/2019 server to minimize the load on the Exchange server.

NOTE

The maximum number of threads you can set is entirely dependent on the free resource available (CPU and memory) on each individual MS Exchange server or remote backup machine. In some cases, using more threads may have the opposite effect as it may end up overloading the MS Exchange server or the staging machine.

Options in Handling Large Number of Mailboxes	Pros	Cons
Dividing the mailboxes into multiple smaller backup sets	Splitting up all mailboxes into separate backup sets will result to faster backup process.	 Creation of multiple backup sets is required, and the individual mailboxes have to be manually selected which can be time consuming. Requires user maintenance of the multiple back sets as the deleted mailboxes need to be unselected and new mailboxes need to be added which can also take time to complete.
Increasing the number of backup threads available	 Does not require splitting up large number of mailboxes into multiple back up sets. Maximum number of concurrent backup threads can be 	The number of threads that can be set will rely on the available resource (CPU and memory) on each individual MS Exchange server or remote backup machine. Thus, using more threads

There are Pros and Cons in choosing an option for handling large number of mailboxes.

www.ahsay.com

configured easily.	may overload the MS
	Exchange server or the
	remote backup machine.

• Periodic Backup Schedule: The periodic backup schedule should be reviewed regularly to ensure that the interval is sufficient to handle the data volume on the machine. Over time, data usage pattern may change on a production server, i.e. the number of new files created, the number of files which are updated/deleted, and new users may be added etc.

Consider the following key points to efficiently handle backup sets with periodic backup schedule.

- Hardware to achieve optimal performance, compatible hardware requirements is a must. Ensure you have the backup machine's appropriate hardware specifications to accommodate frequency of backups,
 - so that the data is always backed up within the periodic backup interval
 - so that the backup frequency does not affect the performance of the production server
- Network make sure to have enough network bandwidth to accommodate the volume of data within the backup interval.
- Retention Policy also make sure to consider the retention policy settings and retention area storage management which can grow because of the changes in the backup data for each backup job.

3 Overview of MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Process

The following steps are performed during an Exchange Mail Level backup job. For an overview of the detailed process for Steps **3**, **5**, **10**, and **12**, refer to the following chapters.

- Periodic Data Integrity Check (PDIC) Process (Step 3)
- Backup Set Index Handling Process
 - Start Backup Job (Step 5)
 - Ompleted Backup Job (Step 12)
- Data Validation Check (Step 10)


3.1 Periodic Data Integrity Check (PDIC) Process

For AhsayOBM v8.3.6.0 (or above), the PDIC will run on the first backup job that falls on the corresponding day of the week from **Monday to Friday**.

To minimize the impact of the potential load of large number of PDIC jobs running at the same time on the AhsayCBS server, the schedule of a PDIC job for each backup set is automatically determined by the result of the following formula:

PDIC schedule = %BackupSetID% modulo 5 or %BackupSetID% mod 5

The calculated **result** will map to the corresponding day of the week (i.e., from Monday to Friday).

0	Monday
1	Tuesday
2	Wednesday
3	Thursday
4	Friday

NOTE: The PDIC schedule cannot be changed.

Example:

Backup set ID: 1594627447932

Calculation: 1594627447932 mod 5 = 2

2 Wednesday

In this example:

- the PDIC will run on the first backup job that falls on Wednesday; or
- if there is no active backup job(s) running from Monday to Friday, then the PDIC will run on the next available backup job.

NOTE

Although according to the PDIC formula for determining the schedule is **%BackupSetID% mod 5**, this schedule only applies if the previous PDIC job was actually run more than 7 days prior.

- Under certain conditions, the PDIC may not run strictly according to this formula. For example: 1. If AhsayOBM was upgraded to v8.5 (or above) from an older version v6, v7, or pre-8.3.6.0
 - version. In this case, the PDIC job will run on the first backup job after upgrade.
- If backup jobs for a backup set are not run on a regular daily backup schedule (for example: on a weekly or monthly schedule), then the PDIC job will run if it detects that the previous PDIC job was run more than 7 days ago.





3.2 Backup Set Index Handling Process

To minimize the possibility of index related issues affecting backups, each time index files are downloaded from and uploaded to backup destination(s); the file size, last modified date, and checksum is verified to ensure index file integrity.

\bigcirc AhsayOBM Index file received by AhsayOBM Redownload ? index file Check index file size ΄ ρ d AhsayCBS Backup Server - OR -Verify Check Check latest Download modified date checksum index.db file of index.db file Redownload Redownload X index file index file **Cloud Destination** Index file is retrieved from d Check modified date. a If index is valid, the current directory (i.e., use the index.db file → If latest modified date AhsayCBS, Cloud to compile file list for is correct, proceed to Destination, FTP or SFTP). backup. > If NOT, proceed to Index file will be downloaded. Verify Check checksum Check index file size. Index file will be of index.db file. redownloaded. If index file size b Proceed to ➔ If checksum is correct, proceed to is correct, proceed to → If NOT, proceed to If NOT, proceed to X

3.2.1 Start Backup Job

3.2.2 Completed Backup Job



3.3 Data Validation Check Process

As an additional measure to ensure that all files transferred to the backup destination(s) are received and saved correctly, both the number of 16 or 32 MB data block files and the size of each block file are checked again after the files are transferred.



4 Logging in to AhsayOBM

Starting with AhsayOBM v8.5.0.0, there are several login scenarios depending on the setting of the account you are using. The different scenarios will be discussed below:

- Login without 2FA
- Login with 2FA using authenticator app
- Login with 2FA using Twilio

4.1 Login to AhsayOBM without 2FA

1. A shortcut icon of AhsayOBM should have been created on your Windows desktop after installation. Double click the icon to launch the application.



2. Enter the **Login name** and **Password** of your AhsayOBM account provided by your backup service provider, then click **OK** to login.

	English 🗸	
Login Login name		
Password Save password Forgot password		
Show advanced option	ОК	
		1





4.2 Login with 2FA using authenticator app

1. A shortcut icon of AhsayOBM should have been created on your Windows desktop after installation. Double click the icon to launch the application.



2. Enter the **Login name** and **Password** of your AhsayOBM account provided by your backup service provider, then click **OK** to login.

ОК	
	СК

- 3. One of the two authentication methods will be displayed to continue with the login:
 - Push Notification and TOTP when using Ahsay Mobile app
 - TOTP only
 - If Ahsay Mobile app was configured to use Push Notification and TOTP then there are two 2FA modes that can be used:
 - Push Notification (default)

Push notification is the default 2FA mode. Accept the login request on Ahsay Mobile to complete the login.

Two-Factor Authentication

Please approve notification request in one of registered Authenticator App.

... Waiting for response (00:04:36)

Authenticate with one-time password



🔞 Ahsay Mobile	
AhsayOBM MSExchangeUser	Ŧ
Authorization Request	
Proceed authorization request for MSExchangeUser	- 1
REJECT A	ССЕРТ

TOTP

However, if push notification is not working or you prefer to use one-time passcode, click the Authenticate with one-time password link, then input the one-time passcode generated by Ahsay Mobile to complete the login.

Two-	Factor	Authe	nticatio	on		
Please approve notification request in one of registered Authenticator App.						
: Wait	ing for res	ponse (00	:03:57)			
Alternat	ively, inpu	it the one-t	time passc	ode gener	ated in you	ır Authenticator App.
8	9	0	3	2	0	(00:00:23)

Example of the one-time passcode generated in Ahsay Mobile.

	Ahsay Mobil	e	
0	AhsayOBM MSExchangeUser		
	890 320	25s	

TOTP only

Enter the one-time passcode generated by the authenticator app to complete the login.

Two-F	actor A	Authen	iticatio	n		
Enter one	-time pass	code gene	erated fro	m authent	icator app	
6	2	5	5	6	8	(00:00:18)

Example of the one-time passcode generated in the third party authenticator app Microsoft Authenticator.



4. After successful login, the following screen will appear.



If you have trouble logging in using the authenticator app please refer to Chapter 9 of the <u>AhsayOBM Quick Start Guide for Windows</u> for more information.



4.3 Login with 2FA using Twilio

1. A shortcut icon of AhsayOBM should have been created on your Windows desktop after installation. Double click the icon to launch the application.



2. Enter the **Login name** and **Password** of your AhsayOBM account provided by your backup service provider, then click **OK** to login.

	English
AhsayOBM	
Login Login name	
Password	
Save password	
Show advanced option	ок

3. Select your phone number.

Two-Factor Authentication		
Please select phone number to receive passcode via SMS message to continue login.		
C Philippines (+63) - *****6123		
C Switzerland (+41) - *****4731		
	Cancel H	lelp

4. Enter the passcode and click Verify to login.

Please enter the passcode	t to the phone number F	mippines (+63) - ****	°°6123
EUVS -	(00:03:59)		
Resend passcode			

5. After successful login, the following screen will appear.



5 On Exchange Server

5.1 Standalone Backup Option

5.1.1 Create Mail Level Backup Set

1. Click the **Backup Sets** icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



2. Create a new backup set by clicking the "+" icon next to Add new backup set.

Ο	AhsayOBM	_ _ ×
	Backup Sets	
		Sort by Creation Time
	Add new backup set	
		Close Help

- 3. Select the Backup set type as **MS Exchange Mail Level Backup.** The system will automatically detect and select the Exchange Server version, make sure the version selected is correct.
 - Name your new backup set.
 - Select from the following version:
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2019
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)

- Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG)
- Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)

As AhsayOBM is installed on directly on the MS Exchange server. The correct MS Exchange version will be automatically selected.

- Enter the hostname of Exchange server.
- Enter the username and password of the Windows user account used for backup.
- One of the second se
- Olick the **Test** button to verify the login details.
- Then click Next to proceed.

•	AhsayOBM
	Create Backup Set
	Name
	Backup Set Name
	Backup set type
	😝 MS Exchange Mail Level Backup 🛛 🖌
	Version
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2007 🖌
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2007
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2010
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2016
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2019
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2010 (DAG)
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG) $\overline{\lor}$
	Next Cancel Help

4. In the Backup Source menu, select the mailboxes or public folders for backup. Fifty (50) users will be displayed by default. If the MS Exchange Server account consists of more than fifty (50) users or above, click the show next 50 button to display the next users. You can expand the mailbox or public folder to select which mail folder to back up by clicking the [+] button. You can also click Show mails to select an individual mail to back up. Once done, click Next to proceed.



5. In the Schedule menu, you can configure a backup schedule for backup job to run automatically at your specified time interval. By default, the Run scheduled backup for this backup set option is disabled. Enable it, then click the "+" icon next to Add new schedule. Click Next to proceed when you are done setting.

AhsayOBM		-		\times
	Schedule			
	Run scheduled backup for this backup set Off			
			Liele	
	Previous Next Ca	ncel	Help	

6. In the Destination menu, select a backup destination where the backup mail will be stored. Click the "+" icon next to **Add new storage destination / destination pool**.

0	AhsayOBM		x
	Destination		
	Backup mode Sequential Existing storage destinations Add new storage destination / destination pool		
	^ ♥		
	Previous Next Cancel	I He	lp

7. Select the destination storage, then click **OK** to proceed.

0	AhsayOBM	_ D X
	New Storage Destination / Destination Pool	
	Name	
	AhsayCBS	
	Destination storage	
	G AhsayCBS	
	OK Can	cel Help

8. Click **Next** on the Destination menu page to proceed.

0	AhsayOBM	
	Destination	
Backup mode Sequential Existing storage destinations AbsayCBS Host: 10.90.10.12:443 Add *		
	Prev	ious Next Cancel Help

9. In the Encryption window, the default **Encrypt Backup Data** option is enabled with an encryption key preset by the system which provides the most secure protection.

	Encryption
Encrypt Backup Data On	
Encryption Type	
Default	
User password Custom	

- 10. You can choose from one of the following three Encryption Type options:
 - Default an encryption key with 44 alpha numeric characters will be randomly generated by the system
 - User password the encryption key will be the same as the login password of your AhsayOBM at the time when this backup set is created. Please be reminded that if you change the AhsayOBM login password later, the encryption keys of the backup sets previously created with this encryption type will remain unchanged.

Custom – you can customize your encryption key, where you can set your own algorithm, encryption key, method and key length.

	Encryption
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type	
Algorithm AES V Encryption key	
****** Re-enter encryption key	
***** Method	
 CB ● CBC Key length 128-bit ● 256-bit 	

NOTE For best practice on managing your encryption key, refer to the following article: <u>Best Practices for Managing Encryption Key on AhsayOBM or AhsayACB</u>.

Click **Next** when you are done.

11. If you have enabled the Encryption Key feature in the previous step, the following pop-up window shows, no matter which encryption type you have selected.

	Encryption	
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type User password		
a safe place. Yo	to write this encryption key down on paper and keep it in u will need it when you need to restore your files later. nat you have done so.	
•••••• Unmask encrypti	on key	
]	Copy to clipboard Confirm



The pop-up window has the following three options to choose from:

Unmask encryption key – The encryption key is masked by default. Click this option to show the encryption key.



- Copy to clipboard Click to copy the encryption key, then you can paste it in another location of your choice.
- > Confirm Click to exit this pop-up window and proceed to the next step
- 12. Enter the Windows login credentials for user authentication. Click **Next** to proceed. The User name should be entered in the following format "user@hostname", i.e. administrator@ahsay.com

0	AhsayOBM	_ D X
	Windows User Authentication	
	Domain Name (e.g Ahsay.com) / Host Name	
	XCH16DAG.ahsay.com	
	User name	
	Administrator@XCH16DAG.ahsay.com	
	Password	
	•••••	
	Previous Next Canc	el Help

NOTE

The Windows User Authentication interface will show only if scheduled backup is enabled and set successfully.

13. The following screen shows when the new backup set is created successfully.



- 14. Click **Backup now** to start a backup immediately, or you can run a backup job later by following the instructions in <u>Run Mail Level Backup Job</u>.
- 15. Based on <u>Best Practices and Recommendations</u>, it is highly recommended to set the **temporary directory** to another location other than Drive C: (e.g. Drive E:). To do this, go to **Backup Sets > Others > Temporary Directory** and click the **Change** button to browse for another location.



16. Optional: Select your preferred **Compression** type. By default, the compression type is Fast with optimization for local.

Go to Others > Compressions, then select from the following:

- No Compression
- Normal
- Fast (Compressed size larger than normal)
- Fast with optimization for local



5.1.2 Run Mail Level Backup Job



Below are the steps of the backup process.

- 1. Log in to AhsayOBM.
- 2. Click the Backup icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.







4. If you would like to modify the In-File Delta type, Destinations and Retention Policy settings, click **Show advanced option**.

•	AhsayOBM	_ 🗆 X
	Choose Your Backup Options	
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Backup	
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox Show advanced option	
	Previous Backup	Cancel Help
•	AhsayOBM	_ 🗆 X
	Choose Your Backup Options	
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Backup	
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O incremental Destinations O characteristic AnsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Run Retention Policy after backup Hide advanced option	
	Previous Backup	Cancel Help

5. Click **Backup** to start the backup.

5.1.3 Restore Mail Level Backup



Below are the steps of the restore process.

1. In the AhsayOBM main interface, click the **Restore** icon.



2. Select the backup set that you would like to restore mail from.



3. Select the backup destination that contains the mail(s) that you would like to restore.



 Click to expand the menu tree to select which mailbox to restore. You can also select mail item(s) from a specific backup job or all mail items that you have backed up to restore. Click **Next** to proceed.

0	AhsayOBM
Se	lect Your Mail Objects To Be Restored
	Select what to restore
	Choose from files as of job 👻 03/05/2019 👻 Latest 👻
	Show filter
	Folders To Subject Sent ● AhsayCBS □ Administrator Create User Malibox.03/04/2019 16:39 10k ● ① Maliboxes □ Administrator Login to User Malibox.03/04/2019 16:43 11k ● ① Maliboxes □ Administrator How technology is 03/05/2019 09:10 6k ● ① StapCB □ Administrator Delivering Health Ca03/05/2019 10:34 4k
	Search Items per page 50 V Page 1/1 V
	Previous Next Cancel Help

5. Select to restore the mail to their Original location, Alternate location or to an Alternate host.

Restore to Original Location

Select the **Original location** option. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option.** Then press **Next** to proceed.



Previous Next Cancel Help

 \odot

Restore to Alternate Location

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in the same Exchange server. Select the **Alternate location** option. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option.** Then press **Next** to proceed.



Click Yes then select the desired mailbox destination. Press Next to proceed.



0	AhsayOBM	_ 🗆 X
	Alternate Location	
	Host	
	10.16.6.81	
	User	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com 🖌	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	Previous Next	Cancel Help

۲

Restore to Alternate Host

You can also choose to restore mailbox item(s) to a different Exchange server of the same version. Select the **Alternate host** option. Enter the hostname, username and password of the alternate Exchange server. If you will access the internet through proxy, check the box beside it and set the configuration for the proxy server and click **Save**. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option**.

•	AnsayOBM	
Choose	Where The Mail Objects To Be Re	stor
	estore mail objects to Original location Alternate location Host Host Username backup	
st	Password Access the Internet through proxy	
	Previous Next Canc	iel Help

Proxy (HTTP)		
PTOXY (HTTP)	Port	
Login ID		
Password		
Test connection		
		Save Cancel

Click Yes then select the desired mailbox destination. Press Next to proceed.

ſ	In alternate restoration, all your selected items from multiple mailbox accounts will be restored to a single mailbox account. Do you want to continue?	
	Yes	No
•	AhsayOBM	
	Alternate Location	
	Host 10.16.6.82 User Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	Previous Next Cancel	Help

Please refer to the Limitation part to check for limitation of the restore process.



6. Select the temporary directory for storing temporary files, such as delta files when they are being merged, click **Restore** to start the restoration.

•	AhsayOBM	_
	Temporary Directory	
	Temporary directory for storing restore files C:\Users\administrator.XCH16NONDAG\temp Brow	
	C. Users a dministrator. ACH for ONDAG temp	se
	Previous Restore	Cancel Help

7. The following screen with the text **Restore Completed Successfully** shows when the restoration is completed.

0		AhsayOBM	_ D X
		Restore	
Mathem	MS Exchange 201	l6 Mail Level Backup	
G	AhsayCBS (Host: 10.9		ه
•	 Restore Complete Estimated time left 	0 sec	_
	Restored	0 (0 file) 5 sec	
	Elapsed time Transfer rate	obit/s	
			Close Help

5.2 Database Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option

5.2.1 Create Mail Level Backup Set

1. Click the **Backup Sets** icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



- 2. Create a new backup set by clicking the "+" icon next to Add new backup set.
- 3. Select the Backup set type as **MS Exchange Mail Level Backup.** The system will automatically detect and select the Exchange Server version, make sure the version selected is correct.
 - Name your new backup set.
 - Select from the following version:
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2019
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)

As AhsayOBM is installed on directly on the MS Exchange server. The correct MS Exchange version will be automatically selected.

- Enter the hostname of all the DAG Member Server.
- Enter the username and password of the Windows user account used for backup.
- One of the "Access the Internet through proxy" if required.
- Then click Next to proceed.



4. In the Backup Source menu, select the mailboxes or public folders for backup. Fifty (50) users will be displayed by default. If the MS Exchange Server account consists of more than fifty (50) users or above, click the show next 50 button to display the next users. You can expand the mailbox or public folder to select which mail folder

to back up by clicking the [+] button. You can also click **Show mails** to select an individual mail to back up. Once done, click **Next** to proceed.

5. In the Schedule menu, you can configure a backup schedule for backup job to run automatically at your specified time interval. By default, the Run scheduled backup for this backup set option is disabled. Enable it, then click the "+" icon next to Add new schedule. Click Next to proceed when you are done setting.

AhsayOBM			_		\times
	Schedule				
	Run scheduled backup for this backup set				
	Off				
	Previous	Next	Cancel	Help)

6. In the Destination menu, select a backup destination where the backup mail will be stored. Click the "+" icon next to **Add new storage destination / destination pool**.

•	AhsayOBM	_ D X
	Destination	
	Backup mode Sequential ▼ Existing storage destinations Add new storage destination / destination pool * ♥	
	Previous Next Cance	l Help

7. Select the destination storage, then click **OK** to proceed.

AhsayOBM	_ 🗆 X
New Storage Destination / Destination Pool	
Name	
AhsayCBS	
Destination storage	
G AhsayCBS	
ок	Cancel Help

8. Click **Next** on the Destination menu page to proceed.

0	AhsayOBM	_ D X
	Destination	
Backup mode Sequential Existing storage destinations AnsayCBS Host: 10.90.10.12:443 Add		
	Previous	Cancel Help

9. In the Encryption window, the default **Encrypt Backup Data** option is enabled with an encryption key preset by the system which provides the most secure protection.

	Encryption	
Encrypt Backup Data On		
Encryption Type	1	
Default 👻 Default		
User password Custom		

- 10. You can choose from one of the following three Encryption Type options:
 - Default an encryption key with 44 alpha numeric characters will be randomly generated by the system
 - User password the encryption key will be the same as the login password of your AhsayOBM at the time when this backup set is created. Please be reminded that if you change the AhsayOBM login password later, the encryption keys of the backup sets previously created with this encryption type will remain unchanged.

Custom – you can customize your encryption key, where you can set your own algorithm, encryption key, method and key length.

	Encryption
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type	
Algorithm AES V Encryption key	
***** Re-enter encryption key	

Method ECB CBC Key length 128-bit © 256-bit	

NOTE For best practice on managing your encryption key, refer to the following article: <u>Best Practices for Managing Encryption Key on AhsayOBM or AhsayACB</u>.

Click Next when you are done setting.

11. If you have enabled the Encryption Key feature in the previous step, the following pop-up window shows, no matter which encryption type you have selected.

	Encryption
Encrypt Back On Encryption Ty Default	/pe
	You are advised to write this encryption key down on paper and keep it in a safe place. You will need it when you need to restore your files later. Please confirm that you have done so.
	Onmask encryption key Copy to clipboard


The pop-up window has the following three options to choose from:

Unmask encryption key – The encryption key is masked by default. Click this option to show the encryption key.



- Copy to clipboard Click to copy the encryption key, then you can paste it in another location of your choice.
- > Confirm Click to exit this pop-up window and proceed to the next step
- 12. Enter the Windows login credentials for user authentication. Click **Next** to proceed. The User name should be entered in the following format "user@hostname", i.e. administrator@ahsay.com

0	AhsayOBM	- 🗆 X
	Windows User Authentication	
	Domain Name (e.g Ahsay.com) / Host Name	
	XCH16DAG.ahsay.com	
	User name	
	Administrator@XCH16DAG.ahsay.com	
	Password	
	•••••	
	Previous Next Can	cel Help

NOTE

The Windows User Authentication interface will show only if scheduled backup is enabled and set successfully.

13. The following screen shows when the new backup set is created successfully.



- 14. Click Backup now to start a backup immediately, or you can run a backup job later by following the instructions in <u>Run Mail Level Backup Job</u>
- 15. Based on <u>Best Practices and Recommendations</u>, it is highly recommended to set the **temporary directory** to another location other than Drive C: (e.g. Drive E:). To do this, go to **Backup Sets > Others > Temporary Directory** and click the **Change** button to browse for another location.



16. Optional: Select your preferred **Compression** type. By default, the compression type is Fast with optimization for local.

Go to **Others > Compressions**, then select from the following:

- No Compression
- Normal
- Fast (Compressed size larger than normal)
- Fast with optimization for local





5.2.2 Run Mail Level Backup Job



As mentioned in the <u>Requirement</u> section of this guide, if you choose to back up an Exchange DAG setup by installing AhsayOBM on each DAG members, only a scheduled backup that is performed on all DAG members at the scheduled time, will be considered a complete backup. AhsayOBM on all DAG members will start a backup, based on the scheduled time of the backup set at the same time.

A manual backup performed only on individual DAG member will not be considered complete.

Please refer to the <u>Scheduled Backup for Exchange Server in Data Availability Group (DAG)</u> <u>Option</u> for details.

5.2.3 Restore Mail Level Backup



Below are the steps of the restore process.

1. In the AhsayOBM main interface, click the **Restore** icon.



2. Select the backup set that you would like to restore mail from.



3. Select the backup destination that contains the mail(s) that you would like to restore.



4. Click to expand the menu tree to select which mailbox to restore. You can also select mail item(s) from a specific backup job or all mail items that you have backed up to restore. Click **Next** to proceed.

0		Ahsay	OBM		_ D X
Sel	ect Your M	ail Obj	ects To B	e Restor	ed
	Select what to restore	,,, _,			
	Choose from files as of job 👻	03/05/2019 🖌	Latest 🖌		
	Show filter				
	Folders ● AhsayCBS ● € 10.16.6.81 ● ● Starkup@xch16 ● ● Starkup@xch16	Subject	Date modified	Size	
	Search		Items per page 50	Page - 🗸	
			Pre	evious Next Ca	incel Help

5. Select to restore the mail to their Original location, Alternate location or to an Alternate host.

Restore to Original Location

Select the **Original location** option. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option.** Then press **Next** to proceed.



 \odot

Restore to Alternate Mailbox

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in the same Exchange server. Select the **Alternate location** option. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option** then press **Next**. Select the desired mailbox destination, then press **Next** to proceed.

	AhsayOBM
Choose	e Where The Mail Objects To Be Restor
	Restore mail objects to Original location O Alternate location Alternate host Show advanced option
	Previous Next Cancel Help
0	AhsayOBM
	Alternate Location
	Alternate Location
	Host 10.16.6.81 10.16.6.82
	Host 10.16.6.81
	Host 10.16.6.81 10.16.6.82 User Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com ↓ Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com

۲

Restore to Alternate Host

You can also choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in another Exchange server of the same version. Select the **Alternate host** option. Enter the host, username and password of the alternate Exchange server. If you will access the internet through proxy, check the box beside it and set the configuration for the proxy server and click **Save**. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option**.

0	AhsayOBM
Choose	e Where The Mail Objects To Be Restor
	Restore mail objects to Original location Output
	Alternate location Alternate host
	Host 10.16.6.81
	Username
	backup Password
	•••••
	Access the Internet through proxy
	Test Show advanced option
	Previous Next Cancel Help
	Proxy (HTTP) IP address Port
	Login ID
	Password
	Test connection
	Save Cancel



0	AhsayOBM	_ D X
	Alternate Location	
	Host	
	10.16.6.81	
	User	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com 🗸	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	Previous	ext Cancel Help

Please refer to the <u>Limitation</u> part to check for the limitation of the restore process.

6. Select the temporary directory for storing temporary files, such as delta files when they are being merged, click **Restore** to start the restoration.

•	AhsayOBM	_ 🗆 X
	T	
	Temporary Directory	
	Temporary directory for storing restore files	
	C:\Users\administrator.XCH16DAG\temp Browse	
	Previous Restore C	Cancel Help

7. The following screen with the text **Restore Completed Successfully** shows when the restoration is completed.

\odot		AhsayOBM	_ _ X
EX Juntor	MS Backup 2016	Restore Mail Level BAckup (DAG)	
6	AhsayCBS (Host: 10.9 Restore Complete Estimated time left Restored Elapsed time Transfer rate		 a
			Close Help

6 On Remote Backup Machine

6.1 Standalone Backup Option

6.1.1 Create Mail Level Backup Set

1. Click the Backup Sets icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



- 2. Create a new backup set by clicking the "+" icon next to Add new backup set.
- 3. Select the Backup set type as **MS Exchange Mail Level Backup**.
 - Name your new backup set.
 - Select from the following version:
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2019
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)

As AhsayOBM is not installed on directly on the MS Exchange 2016 / 2019 server, it cannot automatically detect the MS Exchange version. Therefore, the MS Exchange version must be selected manually.

- Enter the hostname of Exchange server.
- Enter the username and password of the Windows user account used for backup.
- Check the "Access the Internet through proxy" if required.
- Click the **Test** button to verify the login details.
- Then click Next to proceed.



4. In the Backup Source menu, select the mailboxes or public folders for backup. Fifty (50) users will be displayed by default. If the MS Exchange Server account consists of more than fifty (50) users or above, click the show next 50 button to display the next users. You can expand the mailbox or public folder to select which mail folder to back up by clicking the [+] button. You can also click Show mails to select an individual mail to back up. Once done, click Next to proceed.

AhsayOBM	-		×
Backup Source			
Folders			
Image: Constraint of the second se			
e - B Public Folders			
Show mails			
Previous Next C	Cancel	Help	>



5. In the Schedule menu, you can configure a backup schedule for backup job to run automatically at your specified time interval. By default, the Run scheduled backup for this backup set option is disabled. Enable it, then click the "+" icon next to Add new schedule. Click Next to proceed when you are done setting.

• AhsayOBM				_		\times
	Sch	nedule				
	Run scheduled backup for this backup set Off					
			Previous Next Ca	incel	Help	

6. In the Destination menu, select a backup destination where the backup mail will be stored. Click the "+" icon next to **Add new storage destination / destination pool**.

AhsayOBM —		×
Destination		
Backup mode		
Sequential 🗸		
Existing storage destinations		
+ Add new storage destination / destination pool		
Previous Next Cancel		lelp
	<u>י</u> רו ע	icip-



AhsayOBM	-		Х
New Storage Destination / Destination Pool			
Name			
AhsayCBS			
Destination storage			
G AhsayCBS			
			_
ок	Cancel	Hel	0

8. Click **Next** on the Destination menu page to proceed.

A heago A h							
Backgungel Index and a state of the sta	AhsayOBM				-		×
Backgungel Index and a state of the sta							
Backgungel Index and a state of the sta							
Backgungel Index and a state of the sta			Destination				
<complex-block><complex-block><complex-block><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></complex-block></complex-block></complex-block>			Destination				
<complex-block><complex-block><complex-block><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></complex-block></complex-block></complex-block>							
<complex-block><complex-block><complex-block><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></complex-block></complex-block></complex-block>		Backup mode					
Listing storage destinations Image: Constraint of the storage destination of the sto							
AbsayCBS Host: 10.90.10.12:443		Sequential					
AbsayCBS Host: 10.90.10.12:443		Existing storage destinations					
Add							
		Host: 10.90.10.12:443					
		Add					
Previous Next Cancel Help		$\langle \rangle$					
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
Previous Next Cancel Help							
				Previous Next	Cancel	Helr	5



9. In the Encryption window, the default **Encrypt Backup Data** option is enabled with an encryption key preset by the system which provides the most secure protection.

	Encryption	
Encrypt Backup Data On		
Encryption Type		
Default User password		
Custom		

- 10. You can choose from one of the following three Encryption Type options:
 - Default an encryption key with 44 alpha numeric characters will be randomly generated by the system
 - User password the encryption key will be the same as the login password of your AhsayOBM at the time when this backup set is created. Please be reminded that if you change the AhsayOBM login password later, the encryption keys of the backup sets previously created with this encryption type will remain unchanged.
 - Custom you can customize your encryption key, where you can set your own algorithm, encryption key, method and key length.

Encryptio	n
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type Custom V Algorithm	
Encryption key	
Re-enter encryption key	
Method ECB • CBC Key length 128-bit • 256-bit	

For best practice on managing your encryption key, refer to the following article: Best Practices for Managing Encryption Key on AhsayOBM or AhsayACB.

NOTE

Click **Next** when you are done setting.

11. If you have enabled the Encryption Key feature in the previous step, the following pop-up window shows, no matter which encryption type you have selected.

Encryption	
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type	
Default Image: Comparison of the second	
a safe place. You will need it when you need to restore your files later. Please confirm that you have done so.	
Unmask encryption key	Copy to clipboard Confirm

The pop-up window has the following three options to choose from:

Unmask encryption key – The encryption key is masked by default. Click this option to show the encryption key.

¥			
	You are advised to write this encryption key down on paper and keep it in a safe place. You will need it when you need to restore your files later. Please confirm that you have done so.		
	rcX1MBE4brnZO86eKOp6FeabuuRRi3qDXG9q5uBxF0s=		
Ν	Mask encryption key		
	Γ	Copy to clipboard	Confirm

- Copy to clipboard Click to copy the encryption key, then you can paste it in another location of your choice.
- > Confirm Click to exit this pop-up window and proceed to the next step

12. Enter the Windows login credentials for user authentication. Click **Next** to proceed. The User name should be entered in the following format "user@hostname", i.e. administrator@ahsay.com

AhsayOBM		-		×
	Windows User Authentication			
	Domain Name (e.g Ahsay.com) / Host Name			
	ahsayman.local			
	User name			
	username@ahsayman.local			
	Password			
	•••••			
		_		
	Previous Next	Cancel	Hel	р

NOTE The Windows User Authentication interface will show only if scheduled backup is enabled and set successfully.

13. The following screen shows when the new backup set is created successfully.



- 14. Click **Backup now** to start a backup immediately, or you can run a backup job later by following the instructions in <u>Run Mail Level Backup Job</u>
- 15. Based on <u>Best Practices and Recommendations</u>, it is highly recommended to set the **temporary directory** to another location other than Drive C: (e.g. Drive E:). To do this, go to **Backup Sets > Others > Temporary Directory** and click the **Change** button to browse for another location.



Temporary Directory	
Temporary directory for storing backup files	
E:\temp	Chang
77.56GB free out of total 99.48GB space in E:	
 Remove temporary files after backup 	

16. Optional: Select your preferred **Compression** type. By default, the compression type is Fast with optimization for local.

Go to **Others > Compressions**, then select from the following:

- No Compression
- Normal
- Fast (Compressed size larger than normal)
- Fast with optimization for local

Fast with optimization for local	
No Compression	
Normal Fast (Compressed size larger than normal)	
Fast with optimization for local	

6.1.2 Run Mail Level Backup Job



Below is the steps of backup process.

- 1. Log in to AhsayOBM.
- 2. Click the Backup icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



3. Select the backup set which you would like to start a backup for.



If you would like to modify the In-File Delta type, Destinations and Retention Policy settings, click **Show advanced option**.

O AhsayOBM				
		-		×
	Choose Your Backup Options			
	choose four backup options			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup			
	Mis Exchange 2010 Mail Level Kentote Backup			
	KRUPA			
	Backup set type			
	Microsoft Exchange Mailbox			
	Show advanced option			
	Previous Backup Ca	ncel	Hel	р
				-
AhsayOBM		-		×
	Choose Your Backup Options			
	Choose four backup options			
	MS Evchange 2016 Mail Level Pernote Backup			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup			
	C. C			
	Backup set type			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential Incremental			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential Incremental Destinations			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations I G AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443)			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations I G AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443)			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup			
	 Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential Orcremental Destinations O chasyCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Run Retention Policy after backup Hide advanced option 	ncel	Held	
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox In-File Delta type Full Differential O Incremental Destinations C AhsayCBS (Host: 10.90.10.12:443) Retention Policy Retention Policy Retention Policy after backup	ncel	Неір	

4. Click **Backup** to start the backup.

6.1.3 Restore Mail Level Backup



Below are the steps of the restore process.

1. In the AhsayOBM main interface, click the **Restore** icon.



2. Select the backup set that you would like to restore mail from.



3. Select the backup destination that contains the mail(s) that you would like to restore.





4. Click to expand the menu tree to select which mailbox to restore. You can also select mail item(s) from a specific backup job or all mail items that you have backed up to restore. Click **Next** to proceed.

AhsayOBM	- 🗆 X
Select Your M	1ail Objects To Be Restored
Select what to restore	
Choose from files as of job 💊	✔ 05/03/2019 ✔ Latest ✔
Show filter	
ė– □ 🔀 10.90.6.81 ė– □ 🗟 Mailboxes	To Subject Sent Size □ Administrator Create User Mailbox04/03/2019 16:39 10k □ Administrator Login to User Mailbox.04/03/2019 16:43 11k □ Administrator House Houlogy Is c 05/03/2019 90:10 6k □ Administrator Delivering Health Ca05/03/2019 10:34 4k
Search	Items per page 50 V Page 1 / 1 V
	Previous Next Cancel Help

5. Select to restore the mail to their Original location, Alternate location or to an Alternate host.



۲

Restore to Original Location

Select the **Original location** option. If you want to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click the **Show advanced option**. Press **Next** to proceed.



 \odot

Restore to Alternate Location

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in the same Exchange server. Select the **Alternate location** option. If you would like to

modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option** then press **Next**.



Select the desired mailbox destination, then press Next to proceed.

AhsayOBM		-		×
	Alternate Location			
	Host			
	10.90.6.81			
	User Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
	user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
	user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
	user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
				_
	Previous Next Ca	ncel	Hel	p

 \odot

Restore to Alternate Host

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in a different Exchange server. Select the **Alternate host** option and enter the host, username and password. If you will access the internet through proxy, check the box beside it and set the configuration for the proxy server and click **Save**. If you would like



O AhsayOBM	- 🗆 ×
Choose Where The Mail Objects To Be	Restor
Restore mail objects to Original location Alternate location Other Host 10.90.6.81 Username backup Password Other Access the Internet through proxy Test Show advanced option	
Previous Next	Cancel Help
Proxy (HTTP)	
	Save

Select the desired mailbox destination, then press Next to proceed.



Please refer to the Limitation part to check the limitation of restore process.

6. Select the temporary directory for storing temporary files, such as delta files when they are being merged, click **Restore** to start the restoration.

AhsayOBM			_		×
	Temporary Directory				
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
	Temporary directory for storing restore files				
	C:\Users\anam.gumba\temp	Browse			
	Previous	Restore	Cancel	Hel	р

7. The following screen with the text **Restore Completed Successfully** shows when the restoration is completed.

• AhsayOBM				_		\times
		Restore				
Mathos	MS Exchange 201	6 Mail Level Remote Backup				
G	AhsayCBS (Host: 10.9 Restore Complete Estimated time left Restored Elapsed time Transfer rate	d Successfully	۵			
			_ c	lose	Help	>

6.2 Database Availability Group (DAG) Backup Option

6.2.1 Create Mail Level Backup Set

1. Click the **Backup Sets** icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



- 2. Create a new backup set by clicking the "+" icon next to Add new backup set.
- 3. Select the Backup set type as **MS Exchange Mail Level Backup.**
 - Name your new backup set.
 - Select from the following version:
 - o Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2019
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG)
 - Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)

As AhsayOBM is not installed on directly on the MS Exchange 2016 / 2019 server, it cannot automatically detect the MS Exchange version. Therefore, the MS Exchange version must be selected manually.

- Enter the hostname of Exchange server.
- Enter the username and password of the Windows user account used for backup.
- One Check the "Access the Internet through proxy" if required.
- Olick the Test button to verify the login details.
- Then click **Next** to proceed.

0	AhsayOBM	
	Create Backup Set	
	Name	
	MS Backup 2019 Mail Level Backup (DAG)	
	Backup set type Image: Set type Image: Set type Image: Set type Image: Set type	
	Version	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2007	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2007	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2013	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2016	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2019	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2010 (DAG)	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2013 (DAG)	
	Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 (DAG) \checkmark	
		Next Cancel Hel
0	AhsayOBM	
0	AhsayOBM	_ _ X
)		- -
	AnsayOBM Create Backup Set	<u> </u>
		- - -
	Create Backup Set	
	Create Backup Set	
>	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG)	
>	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type	
))	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup	
))	Create Backup Set Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type S MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type Image: MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Host (DAG Member Server)	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup v Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) v Host (DAG Member Server) [P address of DAG Member Server	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type Image: MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Host (DAG Member Server)	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup v Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) v Host (DAG Member Server) [P address of DAG Member Server	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup v Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) v Host (DAG Member Server) IP address of DAG Member Server	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Ms Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Moderses of DAG Member Server	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MS Exchange Mail Level Backup MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Ms Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Mod IP address of DAG Member Server Mad	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type MI S Exchange Mail Level Backup MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Version Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Host (DAG Member Server) IP address of DAG Member Server IP address of DAG Member Server Made Username	
	Name Ms Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type S MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Motrosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Host (DAG Member Server) IP address of DAG Member Server IP address of DAG Member Server Mad Username username ssword	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type M S Exchange Mail Level Backup M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Version M Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)	
	Name Ms Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type S MS Exchange Mail Level Backup Microsoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Motrosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Host (DAG Member Server) IP address of DAG Member Server IP address of DAG Member Server Mad Username username ssword	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type M S Exchange Mail Level Backup M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Version M Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)	
	Name MS Exchange 2019 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG) Backup set type M S Exchange Mail Level Backup M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) Version M Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG) M S Crosoft Exchange Server 2019 (DAG)	e D

4. In the Backup Source menu, select the mailboxes or public folders for backup. Fifty (50) users will be displayed by default. If the MS Exchange Server account consists of more than fifty (50) users or above, click the show next 50 button to display the next users. You can expand the mailbox or public folder to select which mail folder to back up by clicking the [+] button. You can also click Show mails to select an individual mail to back up. Once done, click Next to proceed.



5. In the Schedule menu, you can configure a backup schedule for backup job to run automatically at your specified time interval. By default, the Run scheduled backup for this backup set option is disabled. Enable it, then click the "+" icon next to Add new schedule. Click Next to proceed when you are done setting.

		,	5	
AhsayOBM				– 🗆 X
		Cabadula		
		Schedule		
	Run scheduled backup for this bac	kun set		
	Off	indp see		
			Previous Next	Cancel Help

6. In the Destination menu, select a backup destination where the backup mail will be stored. Click the "+" icon next to **Add new storage destination / destination pool**.



7. Select the destination storage, then click **OK** to proceed.

O AhsayOBM		-		×
New Storage Destination / Destination Pool				
Name				
AhsayCBS				
Destination storage				
G AhsayCBS				
	ОК	Cancel	Hel	p

- AhsayOBM Destination Backup mode Sequential ¥ Existing storage destinations G AhsayCBS Host: 10.90.10.12:443 Add ~ 4 Previous Next Cancel Help
- 8. Click Next on the Destination menu page to proceed.

In the Encryption window, the default Encrypt Backup Data option is enabled with 9. an encryption key preset by the system which provides the most secure protection.

	Encryption	
Encrypt Backup Data On		
Encryption Type	1	
Default 🖌		
User password		
Custom]	

- 10. You can choose from one of the following three Encryption Type options:
 - Default an encryption key with 44 alpha numeric characters will be randomly \geq generated by the system
 - User password the encryption key will be the same as the login password of \geq your AhsayOBM at the time when this backup set is created. Please be reminded that if you change the AhsayOBM login password later, the encryption keys of the backup sets previously created with this encryption type will remain unchanged.

Х

Custom – you can customize your encryption key, where you can set your own algorithm, encryption key, method and key length.

	Encryption
Encrypt Backup Data On Encryption Type	
Algorithm AES V Encryption key	
Re-enter encryption key	
Method ECB CBC Key length 128-bit 256-bit	

NOTE For best practice on managing your encryption key, refer to the following article: <u>Best Practices for Managing Encryption Key on AhsayOBM or AhsayACB</u>.

Click Next when you are done setting.

11. If you have enabled the Encryption Key feature in the previous step, the following pop-up window shows, no matter which encryption type you have selected.

	Encryption	
Encrypt Backu On Encryption Ty Default		
	You are advised to write this encryption key down on paper and keep it in a safe place. You will need it when you need to restore your files later. Please confirm that you have done so.	
	Unmask encryption key	
		Copy to clipboard Confirm



The pop-up window has the following three options to choose from:

Unmask encryption key – The encryption key is masked by default. Click this option to show the encryption key.



- Copy to clipboard Click to copy the encryption key, then you can paste it in another location of your choice.
- > **Confirm** Click to exit this pop-up window and proceed to the next step
- 12. Enter the Windows login credentials for user authentication. Click **Next** to proceed. The User name should be entered in the following format "user@hostname", i.e. administrator@ahsay.com

AhsayOBM	-		×
Windows User Authentication			
Domain Name (e.g. Ahsay.com) / Host Name			
ahsayman.local			
User name			
username@ahsayman.local			
Password			
•••••			
Previous Next	Cancel	Hel	р

NOTE

The Windows User Authentication interface will show only if scheduled backup is enabled and set successfully.



13. The following screen shows when the new backup set is created successfully.

- 14. Click Backup now to start a backup immediately, or you can run a backup job later by following the instructions in <u>Run Mail Level Backup Job</u>
- 15. Based on <u>Best Practices and Recommendations</u>, it is highly recommended to set the **temporary directory** to another location other than Drive C: (e.g. Drive E:). To do this, go to **Backup Sets > Others > Temporary Directory** and click the **Change** button to browse for another location.



16. Optional: Select your preferred **Compression** type. By default, the compression type is Fast with optimization for local.

Go to **Others > Compressions**, then select from the following:

- No Compression
- Normal
- Fast (Compressed size larger than normal)
- Fast with optimization for local



6.2.2 Run Mail Level Backup Job



Below are the steps of the backup process.

- 1. Log in to AhsayOBM.
- 2. Click the Backup icon on the main interface of AhsayOBM.



3. Select the backup set which you would like to start a backup for.
| AhsayOBM - | × |
|---|---|
| Please Select The Backup Set To Backup | |
| MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG)
Owner: DESKTOP-I7U6970
Newly created on Wednesday, 6 March 2019 09:24 | |
| Close Help | |

4. If you would like to modify the In-File Delta type, Destinations and Retention Policy settings, click **Show advanced option.**

AhsayOBM		_		×
	Choose Your Backup Options			
	MS Exchange 2016 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG)			
	Backup set type Microsoft Exchange Mailbox			
	Show advanced option			
	Previous Backup	Cancel	Hel	р



5. Click **Backup** to start the backup job.

6.2.3 Restore Mail Level Backup



Below are the steps of the restore process.

1. In the AhsayOBM main interface, click the **Restore** icon.



2. Select the backup set that you would like to restore mail from.



- Select the backup destination that contains the mail(s) that you would like to restore.
- 4. Click to expand the menu tree to select which mailbox to restore. You can also select mail item(s) from a specific backup job or all mail items that you have backed up to restore. Click **Next** to proceed.

	<u>I</u>					
AhsayOBM					- 🗆	\times
ColoctV		I Obio	ete To De	Doctor		
Select	ouriviai	i Objec	cts To Be	e Resloi	ea	
		J				
Select what to	restore					
		(02/2010 b 4	4			
Choose from	n files as of job 👻 06/	/03/2019 V Lates				
Show filter						
Folders		Subject	Date modified	Size		
E G AhsayCE		,				
i — — <mark>№</mark> 10	.90.6.81 Mailboxes					
	anboxes backup@xch16					
٢	>					
Search			Items per page 50	▼ Page - ▼		
			Prev	ious Next Ca	ancel Hel	р

www.ahsay.com

3.

Previous Cancel Help

5. Select to restore the mail to their Original location, Alternate location or to an Alternate host.

Restore to Original Location

Select the **Original location** option. If you want to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option**. Press **Next** to proceed.

AhsayOBM - L ×
Choose Where The Mail Objects To Be Restor
Restore mail objects to Original location Alternate location Alternate host Show advanced option
Previous Next Cancel Help

Restore to Alternate Location

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in the same Exchange server. Select the **Alternate location** option. If you want to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option** and press **Next**. Select the desired mailbox destination, then press **Next** to proceed.



AhsayOBM	-		×
Alternate Location			
Alternate Eocation			
Host			
10.90.6.81			
10.90.6.82			
User			
Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com 🗸			
Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com			
Previous Next	Cancel	Hel	
	Cancel		P

• Restore to Alternate Host

You can choose to restore mailbox item(s) to another mailbox in the same Exchange server. Select the **Alternate host** option and enter the host, username and password. If you will access the internet through proxy, check the box beside it and set the configuration for the proxy server and click **Save**. If you would like to modify the Verify checksum of in-file delta files setting, click **Show advanced option** then press **Next**.

AhsayOBM - ×
V Albayoom
Choose Where The Mail Objects To Be Restor
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
Restore mail objects to
Original location
O Alternate location
Alternate host
Host
10.90.6.81
Username
backup
Dackup
Password
Access the Internet through proxy
Test
Show advanced option
Show devalued option
Previous Next Cancel Help

Proxy (HTTP)		
IP address	Port	
Login ID		
Password		
•••••• Test connection		
		Save Cancel

Select the desired mailbox destination, then press Next to proceed.

AhsayOBM	- 0	×
	Alternate Location	ļ
	Alternate Location	ļ
		ļ
	Host	
	10.90.6.81	
	User	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com 🖌	
	Administrator@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	backup@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user01@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	user02@xch16dag.ahsay.com user03@xch16dag.ahsay.com	
	userosexchrodag.ansay.com	
	Previous Next Cancel Hel	р

Please refer to the Limitation part to check the limitation of restore process.

6. Select the temporary directory for storing temporary files, such as delta files when they are being merged, click **Restore** to start the restoration.

AhsayOBM			-		Х
	Temporary Directory				
	Temporary Directory				
	Temporary directory for storing restore files				
	C:\Users\anam.gumba\temp Brow	se			
	Previous Restore	Са	ncel	Hel	р

7. The following screen with the text **Restore Completed Successfully** shows when the restoration is completed.

AhsayOBM	•					×
				-		~
		Postoro				
		Restore				
57	MS Exchange 20	16 Mail Level Remote Backup (DAG)				
Mailbox						
(AhsayCBS (Host: 10.)		لم			
	 Restore Complete Estimated time left 	a successfully				
	Restored	0 (0 file)				
	Elapsed time	14 sec				
	Transfer rate	0bit/s				
						_
				Close	Hel	P

6.3 Configure Backup Schedule for Automated Backup

1. Click the Backup Sets icon on the AhsayOBM main interface.



- 2. All backup sets will be listed. Select the backup set that you would like to create a backup schedule for.
- 3. Go to the **Backup Schedule** tab. If the **Run scheduled backup for this backup set** option is off, switch it **On**. Existing schedules will be listed if there is any. Click the **Add** button to add a new backup schedule.

Schedu	lle
Run sched	uled backup for this backup set
On	
Existing sch	nedules
Back	up Schedule
Daily	(Everyday at 20:00)
Add	

4. The New Backup Schedule window will appear.

Name							
Daily-	1						
Туре							
Daily	~						
Start ba	ackup						
at	~	13 🗸	: 00	•			
Stop							
a construir a	ull ba		omplet	bed	6		

- 5. In the New Backup Schedule window, configure the following backup schedule settings.
 - Name the name of the backup schedule.



- **Type** the type of backup schedule. There are four (4) different types of backup schedule: Daily, Weekly, Monthly and Custom.
 - **Daily** the time of the day or interval in minutes/hours which the backup job will run.

New Backup Schedule
Name
Daily-1
Type Daily V Start backup at V 15 V : 41 V
Stop
until full backup completed 🖌
Run Retention Policy after backup

• Weekly – the day of the week and the time of the day or interval in minutes/hours which the backup job will run.

Weekly-					
Туре					
Weekly	~				
Backup o	n these days	of the week			
🗌 Sun	Mon []Tue 🗌 W	Ved 🗌 Thu	🗌 Fri	🖌 Sat
Start bac	kup				
at 🔹	23 🗸 :	00 🗸			
Stop					
	I have been seen	npleted 🖌			

• **Monthly** – the day of the month and the time of that day which the backup job will run.

New Backup Schedule
Name
Monthly-1
Type Monthly V
Backup on the following day every month Day Last First Sunday
Start backup at $23 \checkmark : 00 \checkmark \text{on the selected days}$
Stop until full backup completed V Run Retention Policy after backup

• **Custom** – a specific date and the time of that date which the backup job will run.

New Backup Schedule
Name
Custom-1
Туре
Custom 🖌
Backup on the following day once 2020 June 31
Start backup at
23 🗙 : 59 🖌
Stop
until full backup completed 🖌
Run Retention Policy after backup

- Start backup the start time of the backup job.
 - at this option will start a backup job <u>at a specific time</u>.
 - every this option will start a backup job <u>in intervals of minutes or</u> <u>hours</u>.



Here is an example of a backup set that has a periodic and normal backup schedule.

New Backup Schedule	New Backup Schedule
Name	Name
Weekly-1	Weekly-2
Type Weekly 🖌	Type Weekly
Backup on these days of the week	Backup on these days of the week
Sun 🖌 Mon 🖌 Tue 🖌 Wed 🖌 Thu 🖌 Fri 🗌 Sat	🖌 Sun 🗌 Mon 🗌 Tue 🗌 Wed 🗌 Thu 🗌 Fri 🖌 Sat
Start backup	Start backup
every V 4 hours V	at 🗸 21 🖌 : 00 🗸
Stop	Stop
until full backup completed 🖌	until full backup completed 🖌
🗹 Run Retention Policy after backup	☑ Run Retention Policy after backup



Figure 1.2



Figure 1.1 – Periodic backup schedule runs every 4 hours from Monday – Friday during business hours

Figure 1.2 – Normal backup schedule runs at 21:00 or 9:00 PM on Saturday and Sunday on weekend non-business hours

- Stop the stop time of the backup job. This only applies to schedules with start backup "at" and is not supported for periodic backup schedule (start backup "every")
 - until full backup completed this option will stop a backup job once it is complete. This is the configured stop time of the backup job by default.
 - after (defined no. of hrs.) this option will stop a backup job after a certain number of hours regardless of whether the backup job has completed or not. This can range from 1 to 24 hrs.

The number of hours must be enough to complete a backup of all files in the backup set. For small files in a backup, if the number of hours is not enough to back up all files, then the outstanding files will be backed up in the next backup job. However, if the backup set contains large files, this may result in partially backed up files.

For example, if a backup has 100GB file size which will take approximately 15 hours to complete on your environment, but you set the "stop" after 10 hours, the file will be partially backed up and cannot be restored. The next backup will upload the files from scratch again.

The partially backed up data will have to be removed by running the data integrity check.

As a general rule, it is recommended to review this setting regularly as the data size on the backup machine may grow over time.

Run Retention Policy after backup – if enabled, the AhsayOBM will run a retention policy job to remove files from the backup destination(s) which have exceeded the retention policy after performing a backup job. To save hard disk quote in the long run, it is recommended to enable this option.

As an example, the four types of backup schedules may look like the following:

Schedule
Run scheduled backup for this backup set On
Existing schedules
Daily-1 Daily (Everyday at 15:41)
Weekly-1 Weekly - Saturday (Every week at 23:00)
Monthly-1 Monthly - The Last Day (Every month at 23:00
Custom-1 Custom (07/01/2020 at 23:59)
Add

6. Click **Save** to confirm your settings once done.



7 Contact Ahsay

7.1 Technical Assistance

To contact Ahsay support representatives for technical assistance, visit the Partner Portal: https://www.ahsay.com/partners/

Also use the Ahsay Wikipedia for resource such as Hardware Compatibility List, Software Compatibility List, and other product information: <u>https://wiki.ahsay.com/</u>

7.2 Documentation

Documentations for all Ahsay products are available at: <u>https://www.ahsay.com/jsp/en/home/index.jsp?pageContentKey=ahsay_downloads_documen_tation_guides</u>

You can send us suggestions for improvements or report on issues in the documentation, by contacting us at:

https://www.ahsay.com/partners/

Please specify the specific document title as well as the change required/suggestion when contacting us.